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Mr. Buchen 

THE WHITE HOUSE 
\ 

WASHINGTON 

October 28, 1974 

Dear Mr. Silberman: 

Service has been made upon me in connection with my official 
responsibilities of the attached summons with respect to Hellman, et al. v. 
Sampson, et al., D. D.C., Civil Action No. 74-1551. 

This is to request that the Department of Justice handle this matter on my 
behalf. If additional information or assistance is required, please contact 
William E. Casselman II of this office. I would appreciate very much your 
sending this office copies of any materials you might file with the Court in 
this matter. 

Honorable Lawrence Silberman 
Deputy Attorney General 
Department of Justice 
Washington, D.C. 20530 

Enclosure 

Sincerely, 

Philip W. Buchen 
Counsel to the President 

• 

Digitized from Box 29 of the Philip Buchen Files at the Gerald R. Ford Presidential Library



SUMMONS IN A CIVIL ACTION 
Ci'l. 1 { 2-;)-:tJ 

(Formerly D. C. Form No. 45 Rev. (6--1~)) 

ltuttr~ §tatrs 11Hstrtrt Qlnurt 
FOR THE 

District of Columbia 

CIVIL ACTION FILE NO. ----

Lillian Hellman, et al., 

Plaintiff SUMl\IONS 
v. 

Arthur Sampson, et al., 

Defendant 

To the ahove named Defendant Philip Buchen 

You are hereby summoned and required to serve upon Melvin L. Wulf 

plaintiff's attorney , whose address American Civil Liberties Union 
410 First Street, S.E. 
Washington, D.C. 20008 

an ans\\·er to the complaint which is herewith served upon you, within 6 0 days after service of this 

summons upon you, exclusive of the day of service. If you fail to do so, judgment by default will be 

taken against you for the relief demanded in the complaint. 

-----z--_ -_--- -_ -__ ---- ----_ -_-----_-. _--j. ---_ ---_--. --------
. ,~ ·.. .?;J 1 J!;rk of Court~ 

----- J._t.Lt.-.UA~ .zi~0....c·-~-z~~~ 
/j De}nrtii}Clery. J . ;_, 'l ~;; 

·-·· Date: 

CCI 2 4. 1974 
[Seal of Court] 

:\OTE:-Thb ~ummons is issued pursuant to \{ule J of the Federal Hules of Ch·il Prot·edure< 
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
~- ')R THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - X 

LILLIAN HELLMAN 
630 Park Avenue 
New York, New York 

BLAIR CLARK 
67 Rosedale Road 
Princeton, New Jersey 

THOMAS BRANDON 
Box 346 
Scarborough, New York 

ADRIAN deWIND 
37 W. 12th Street 
New York, New York 

NORMAN OORSEN 
298 w. 11th Street 
New York, New York 

STEPHEN GILLERS 
20 E. 9th Street 

.. New York, New York 

JOHN HERSEY 
420 Humphrey Street 
New Haven, Connecticut 

ROBERT SILVERS 
250 w. 57th Street 
New York, New York 

ARTHUR SCHLESINGER, JR. 
33 w. 42nd Street 
New York, New York 

TELFORD TAYLOR 
Morningside Heights 
New York, New York 

HANNAH WEINSTEIN 
250 E. 65th Street 
New York, New York 
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: . . 
: . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . .. . . . . . 
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: 
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Plaintiffs, : 

v. 

ARTHUR SAMPSON 
General Services Administration 
18th Street & F Street, N.W. 
Washington, D.C. 20405 

PHILIP BUCHEN 
The White House 
Washington, D.C. 

. . . . 
: . . . . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . 

Civil Action 
No. 

~'/!_ 1:;~1 
' ..... vc ·---

COMPLAINT 
FOR DECLARATORY 
AND INJUNCTIVE RELIEF 



RICHARD M. 2.IXON 
"Casa Pacifica" 
San Clemente, Califor"1ia 

H. STUART KNIGHT 
Secret Service 
1860 G Street, N.W. 
Washington, D.C. 

Defendants. 

: 

: 
: . . 
: . . 
: 
: 

: . . 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - X 

Plaintiffs, by their attorneys, allege as follows 

in their Complaint and Cross-Claim against defendant Nixon: 

1. This is an action under the Freedom of Inforrna-

tion Ace, 5 u.s.c. § 552 et seq, and the First Amendment to the 

Constitution. Plaintiffs seek an order and judgment of this 

court enjoining defendants from withholding certain specified 

tape recordings now under their custody and control. 

The ta~recordings to which plaintiffs seek access 

consist of 147 specified recordings of conversations in the 

White House and Executive Office Building (hereinafter "Presi-

dential tap recordings") which are a portion of the subject 

matter of an alleged agreement between defendants Sampson 

and Nixon dated September 6, 1974, a copy of which is attached 

her·eto as Exhibit A. A schedule of the 14 7 specific tape re-

cordings requested in this action is attached hereto as Exhibit 

B. 

JURISDICTION 

2. Jurisdiction is conferred upon this court by 

5 u.s~c. §§ 552 and 704, 28 u.s.c. §§ 1331 and 1361 and by 

the First Amendment to the Constitution. The amount in con-

troversy exceeds $10,000, exclusive of interests and costs. 
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PARTIES 

Plaintiffs 

3. Lillian Hellman is a professional writer and 

playwright who has been awarded numerous prizes for her writ-

ings. She is also co-Chairman of the Committee for Public 

Justice, an organization affiliated with the American Civil 

Liberties Foundation and concerned with the protection of 

civil liberties and civil rights of American citizens. 

4. Blair Clark is a professional journalist and 

co-Chairman of the Committee for Public Justice. 

5. Thomas Brandon is a professional film-maker and 

a member of the Executive Council of the Committee for Public 

Justice. 

6. Adrian deWind is a lawyer and a member of the 

Committee for Public Justice. 

7. Norman Dorsen is a ·Professor of Law at the New 

York University School of Law and ~ member of the Executive 

Council of the Committee for Public Justice. 

8. Stephen Gillers is a lawyer and writer and a 

member of the Executive Council of the Committee for Public . 

Justice. 

9. John Hersey is a professional writer and a 

member of the Executive Council of the Committee for Public 

Justice. 

10 •. Robert Silvers is a .professional editor and a . . . . . . . 

member of the Executive Council of the Committee for Public 

Justice. 

11. Arthur Schlesinger, Jr. is the Albert Schweitzer 

Distinguished Professor of the Humanities and a professional 

historian who has won numerous prizes for his historical writings. 

He is a member of the Committee for Public Justice. 

-3-
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12. Telford Taylor is Professor of L~w at the 

Columbia University School of Law and a member of the Execu-

tive Council of the Committee for Public Just. .;.ce. 

13. Hannah Weinstein is a professional film-maker 

and a member of the Executive Council of the Committee for 

Public Justice. 

Defendants 

14. Arthur Sampson is Administrator of the General 

Services Administration and custodian of the Presidential tape 

recordings which are the subject matter of this suit. Pursuant 

to an alleged agreement with defendant Nixon, dated September 6, 

1974, he agreed to take possession of certain documents and 

tape recordings, including the tape recordings at issue in 

this action, and to permit no persons other than those approved 

in writing in advance by defendant Nixon to have access to such 

tape recordings and documents. 

15. Philip Buchen is Counsel to the President of 

the United States. On information and belief he has been 

delegated authority by the President to supervise possession 

of and access to the tape recordings at issue in this action. 

16. Richard M. Nixon is the former President of 

the· United States and a party to the foregoing alleged agree-

ment with defendant Sampson and others. Under the alleged 

agreement, defendant Nixon's prior written approval is nee-

essary for any person to be permitted access to the tape re-

¢or~ings ·a:t issue i? :this action • 
. . . 

17. H. Stuart Knight is Director of the United 

States Secret Service, exercising supervisory authority over 

agents of the Secret Service who physically control access to 

the tape recordings at issue in this action. 

18. Def~ndant5 Sampson, Buche~ ~~d.K~ight ~r~ 
and '"'·· '~. 

sued individually/in their official capacities. Defendant 

Nixon is sued individually. 
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.. 
COUNT ONE 

19. During the period 1971 to 1973, defendant :rixon 

had installed a tape recording system in the White House ;~nd 

the Executive Office Building 'i:7hich recorded numerous conver-

sations between the President and other persons. These record-

ings have been preserved under the control of Secret Service 

Agents acting under the· direction of defendant Knight and his 

predecessors in office. 

20. Many of these Presidential tape recordings 

contain evidence of possible criminal or impeachable conduct 

by defendant Nixon and evidence of the abuse of his powers 

as President. 

21. During the course of an inquiry into the irn-

peachment of defendant Nixon, the Judiciary Committee of the 

··House of Representatives subpoenaed 14 7 tape recordings which 

it had reason to believe might contain evidence of impeachable 

offenses by the President. These 147 recordings are the sub-

ject matter of this action. Defendant Nixon refused to honor 

the subpoenas and to deliver the 147 recordings requested, but 

did make public documents purporting to be the transcripts of 

approximately 41 of the conversations in question. 

22. Following his resignation as President, defend-

ant Nixon entered into an agreement with defendant Sampson which 

purported: (1) to acknowledge the defendants• ownership of the 

147 tape recordings and other Presidential papers; {2) to per~ 

mit defendant Sampson to accept for deposit said tape record-

ings and other papers; and (3) to deny access to such record-

ings to all persons not having the prior written permission of 

defendant Nixon. 

23. Said agreement, to the extent that it applies 

to the fo:rPgni..ng 147 RilPcifiPrt t.r1pP recnrrtingR ... iR ~1nia r1)nf 
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no force or validity, because it: I, ) 
\.L acknowledges 

the tape recordings by defendant Nixon despite the fact that 

defendant Nixon does not, under applicable law, own said record-

ings; (2) may be considered as a gift of said recordings from 

the government to defendant Nixon which is not permitted by 

any applicable law or regulation; and (3) denies access to 

said recordings, which are property of the United States gov-

ernment, to third parties, despite the fact that such access 

is required under the provisions of the Freedom of Information 

Act. 

24. Defendants Buchen and Knight currently main-

tain possession or control of the tape recordings at issue in 

this action with a view toward depositing them with defendant 

Sampson in accordance with the terms of the defendants' al-

leged agreement of September 6, 1974. 

25. Pursuant to the Freedom of Information Act of 

1966, Title 5 u.s.c. section 552(a}, plaintiffs requested access 

to the 147 tape recordings referred to above in a letter to 

defendant Sampson, dated October 2, 1974, a copy of which is 

annexed hereto as Exhibit c. 

26. By letter dated October 15, 1974, defendant 

Sampson, through Richard Q. Vawter, Director of Information for 

the General Services Administration (hereinafter 11 GSA" ) , denied 

plaintiffs' request for access to the tape recordings. (A copy 

of this letter is attached hereto as Exhibit D.) The purported 

grounds for refusal were: (1) that GSA did not have the requested 

materials in its possession, and (2) that the Presidential Li-

braries Act of 1955, Title 44, u.s.c. §§ 2107-2108, precludes 

access to the tape recordings. 

27. Plaintiffs seek access to the tapes in question 

-6- " . ... 



as cjtizens, and in some ins~ances as members of a non-profit 

Com.-rnittee of citizens concerned about issues of public just:';;e 

which is conducting an inquiry into Watergate events and the 

abuDe of presidential power. As h _: storians, writers, journalists, 

filr~-makers and lawyers, plaintiffs also seek access to the tape 

recordings for their professional pursuits. 

28. Plaintiffs have a right, pursuant to the Freedom 

of Information Act, to inspect and copy at a reasonable cost the 

tape recordings referred to above, none of which are protected 

by any form of executive or personal privilege of defendant 

Nixon, and defendants are improperly withholding the informa-

tion sought in this action contrary to the disclosure require-

ments of the Act. 

COUNT TWO 

29. Paragraphs 1-28 inclusive are hereby incorpor-

ated by reference herein. 

30. Defendants• denial of access to plaintiffs to 

the tape recordings referred to above violates plaintiffs.' 

rights under the First Amendment in that it: {1) impedes and 

curtails the constitutionally protected activities of the 

plaintiffs acting through the Committee for Public Justice; 

(2) inhibits their research, writing and publication concerning 

a historical subject of great public significance; and (3) re-

stricts their rights as citizens to discover if and how the 

highest office of the land was misused by defendant Nixon and 

prevents them from establishing through the political process 

proper safeguards against Presidential abuse of power in the 

future. 

miEREFORE, plaintiffs demand judgment: 

{1) enjoining defendants from withholding access 

to the tape recordings de::;c.:ri:i.JE::c1 in .l?aragzaph.s l tiu.~ 

Exhibit B; 

-7-



{2) ordt:.•r ing :-:r.:fendants to make promptly available to 

plaintiffs the tape recc~dings specified in paragraphs 1 and 21 

and Exhibit B; 

(3) declaring that the alleged agreement of Sept2mber 

6,1974, between defendants Sampson and Nixon, is void and ~lle-

gal and of no force or validity as applied to the tape record-

ings described in paragraphs 1 and 21 and Exhibit B; 

(4) granting plaintiffs such other and further relief 

as this Court deems just and proper. 

Dated: October , 1974 
New York, New York 

Respectfully submitted, 

MELVIN L. WULF 
c/o American Civil Liberties Union 

410 First Street, S.E. 
Washington, D.C. 20003 
(202) 544-1681 

JOHN H. F. SHATTUCK 
American Civil Liberties 

Foundation 
22 East 40th Street 
New York, New York 10016 
(212) 725-1222 

& 
LEON 'FRIEDMAN 

Hofstra University 
School of Law 

Union 

Southern California Avenue 
Hempstead, New York 11550 

TELFORD TAYLOR 
Columbia University Law School 
Amsterdam Avenue and 116th Street 
New York, New York 10027 
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EXHIBIT A 

: --~. 

September 6. 1974 

·Honorable Arthur F. Sampson 
Admi nj s trator 
General Services Adlni.nistration 
Washington, D. C. 

Dear Mr. Sampson: 

In keeping with the tradition established by other former 
Presidents, it is my desire to donate to the United States, at a future 
date, a substantial portion of my Presidential materials which. are of 
historical value to our Country. In donating these Presidential 
materials to the United States, it will be my desire that they be made 
available, with appropriate restrictions, for research and study. 

In the interim, so that my materials may be preserved, 
1 offer to transfer to the Administrator of General Services (the 
11Administ;rator"), for deposit, pursuant to 44 U.S. C. Section 2101, 
~ seg~, all of my Presidential historical materials as defined in 
44 U.S. C. Section ·2101 {hereinafter llMaterialsn), which are located 
within the metropolitan area of the District of Columbia, subject to 
. the following: 

1. The Administrator agrees to accept solely for 

3. 

the purpose of deposit the transfer of the Materials, 
. and in so accepting the Materials agrees to abide 

by each of the terms and conditions contained herein. 

In the event of my death prior to the expiration of 
the three-year time period established in para­
graph 7 A hereof, the terms and conditions. contained 
herein shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit 
of the executor of my estate for the duration o; 
said period. 

1 retain all legal and equitable title to the Materials, 
including all literary property rights. 

• 
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EXHIBIT A 

: - .""1. . 

- z-

· The Materials shall, upon acceptance of this 
offer by the Administrator, be deposited 
temporarily in an existing facility belonging 
to the United States, located within the State 

·of California near my present residence. The 
Materials shall remain deposited in the temporary 
California. facility until such time as there may be 
established, with my approval, a permanent 
Presidential archival depository as provided for 
.in 44 U.S. C. Section 2108. 

5. The Adnri.nistrator shall provide in such 
temporary depository and in any permanent 
Presidential archival depository reasonable 

·office space for my personal use in accordance 
with 44 U.S. C. Section 2108 (f). The Materials 
in their entirety shall be deposited within such 
office space in the manner described in para­
graph 6 hereof • 

. 6. Within both the temporary and any permanent 
Presidential archival depository, all of the 
Materials shall be placed within secure storage 
areas to which access can be gained only by use 
of two keys. ·One key, essential for access, shall 
be given to me alone as custodian of the Materials. 
The other key may be duplicated and entrusted by 
you to the Archivist of the United States or to 

· members of his staff. 

7. Access to the Materials within the secure areas, 
with .the exception of recordings of conversations 
in the White House and the Executive Office 
Building which are governed by paragraphs, 8 and 9 
hereof, shall be as follows: 

• 

,····· 
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EXHIBIT A 

... 

- 3-

A. For a period of three years from the date 

B. 

• 

fi ...... -~~ ... ~ - • ·~. ~ -.:. - . :;r .• . . ..... '"c..,' :.:~-;.:- ;3. 

-,.._..,-- ·------~ . ·- - -- ' 

of this instrument, I agree not to with(.· ·aw 
from deposit any originals of the Materials, 
except as provided in subparagraph B below 
and paragraph 10 herein. During said three-· 
year period, I may make reproductions of 
any of the originals of the Materials and 
withdraw from deposit such reproductions 
for any use I may deem appropriate. Except · 
as provided in subparagraph B below, access 
to the Materials shall be limited to myself, 
and to such persons as I may authorize from 
time to time in writing, the scope of such 
access to be set· forth by me in each said 
written-authorization. Any request for 
access to the Materials made to the Adrninistra-: 
tor, the Archivist of the United States or any 
member of their staffs shall be referred to me. 
After three years I shall have the right to 
withdraw from deposit without formality any 
or all of the Materials to which this paragraph 
applies and to retain such withdrawn Materials 
for any purpose or use I may deem appropriate, 
inclu<li:ng but not limited to reproduction, 
examination, publication or display by myself 
or by anyone else I may approve. 

In the event that production of the Materials 
or any portion thereof is demanded by a 
subpoena or other order directed to any 
official or employee of the United States, 
the recipient of the subpoena or order shall 
immediately notify me so that I may respond 
thereto, as the owner and custodian of the 
Materials, with sole right and power of access 
thereto and, if appropriate, assert any privilege 
or defense I may have. Prior to any such 
production, I shall inform the United States 
so it may inspect the subpoenaed materials 
and determine whether to object to its pro­
duction on grounds of national security or 
any other privilege • 

.. ; _-. '· .- ·-------- =--,.~·:_:·=F-a<7-~--~~:.!";~-~~~ '~--~~4't")-~. ::-:::-__ -~-:T'!T 
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EXHIBIT A 

• 1 

-4~ 

The tape recordings o£ conversations in the 
White House and Executive Office Building 
which will be deposited pursuant to this 
instrument shall remain on deposit until 
September 1, 1979. I intend to and do hereby 
,donate to the United States, such gift to be 
effective September 1, 1979, all o£ the tape 
recordings of conversations in the White House 
and Executive Office Building conditioned· however 
on my continuing right of access as specified in 
paragraph 9 hereof and on the further condition 
that such tapes shall be destroyed at the time of 
my death or on September 1, 1984, whichever 
event shall first occur. Subsequent to 
Septe:rp.ber 1, 1979 the Administrator shall 
destroy such tapes as I may direct. I impose 
this restriction as other Presidents have before 
me to guard against the possibility of the tapes 
being used to injure, embarrass, or harass any 
person and properly to safeguard the interests of 

· the United States. 

Access to recordings of conversations in the 
White House and Executive Office Building within 
the secure areas shall be restricted as follows: 

-. 

. A. I agree not to withdraw from deposit any 
originals of the Materials, except as 
provided in subparagraph B and paragraph 10 
below, and no reproductions shall be made 
unless there is mutual agreement. Access 
to the tapes shall be limited to myself, and 
to such persons as I may authorize from 
time to t:i.:me in writing, the scope of such 
access to be' set forth by me in each said 
written authorization. No person may 

B. 

• 

listen to such tapes without my written. 
prior approval. I reserve to myself such 
literary use of the information on the tapes. 

In the event that production of the Materials 
or any portion thereof is demanded by a 
subpoena or other order directed to any 
official or employee of the United States, 

---r"-r----. -
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EXHIBIT A 
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the recipient of the subpoena or order 
shall immediately notify me so that I 
may respond thereto. as the owner and 
custodian of the Materials. with sole right 
and power of access thereto and, if appro­
priate, assert any privilege or defense I 
zna.y have. Prior to any such pro_ductir:"l, 
I shall inform the United States so it may 
inspect the subpoenaed materials and 
determine whether to object to its pro­
duction on grounds of national security 
or any other privilege. 

10. The Administrator shall arrange and be responsible 
for the reasonable protection of the Materials from 
loss, destruction or access by unauthorized persons, 
and may upon receipt of an appropriate written 
authorization from the Counsel to the President 
provide for a temporary re-deposit of certain of 
the Materials to a location other than the existing 
facility described in paragraph 4 herein, provided 
however that no dimunition of the Administrator's 
responsibility to protect and secure the Materials 
irom loss, destruction, unauthorized copying or 
ac·cess by unauthorized persons is affected by said 
temporary re-deposit. 

11. From time to time as I deem appropriate, I intend 
· to donate to the United States certain portions of 

the Materials deposited with the Administrator 
pursuant to this agreement, such donations to be 
accompanied by appropriate restrictions as authorized 
by 44 U.S. C. Section 2107. However, prior to such 

' 0 

donation, it will be necessary to review the Materials 
to determine which of them should be subject to 
restriction, and the nature of the restrictions to be 
imposed. This review will require a meticulous, 
thorough, time-consuming analysis. If necessary 
to fulfill this task, I will request that you designate 
certain members of the Archivist's staff to assist 
in this review under my direction • 

• 

-~--~ .... r.-.--- •• ....... --.. -·-·---:,-
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If you deterznine that the terms and conditions set 
forth above are acceptable for the purpose of governing the 
establislunent and maintenance of a depository of the Materials 
pursuant to 44 U.S. C. Section 2101 and for accepting the 
irrevocable gift, of recordings of conversations after the specified 
five year period for purposes as contained in paragraph 8 herein. 
please indicate your acceptance by signing the enclosed copy of 
this letter and returning it to me. Upon your acceptance ·we both 
shall be bound by the terms of this agreement. 

Accepted by: 

. -~ ... : . ... 

• 
t..: 
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EXHIBIT B 

August 22, 197 4 CO~GRESSIONAL RECORD- HOUSE H9031 
1. Certain conver5n.tlons between the 

President and 1\.tr. Haldeman or Mr. Ehrlich­
man or Mr. Dean 1n February. March and 
AprU, 1973, as follows: 

(a) Conversation.s between the President 
and Mr. Haldeman on cir about Feb:ruary 20, 
1973, that concern the possible appointment 
of Mr. Magruder to • government pOBition; 

(b) Conversatlon.s between the President, 
.ltr. Haldeman and Mr. Ehrllchman on or 
about February 27, 1973, that concern the 
assignment of Mr. Dean to work dtreetly with 
the President on Watergate and Watergate­
related matters; 

(c) Conversations bl'tween the President 
and Mr. Dean on March 17, 1973, trom 1:25 
to 2:10p.m. and March 20, 1973, from 7:29 to 
7:U p.m. 

(d) Conversations between the President 
and Mr. Ehrllchman on March 27, 1973 from 
11:10 a.m. to 1:30 p.m .. and on March 30, 
1973, from 12:02 to 12:18 p.m.: and 

(e) Conversations between the President 
and Mr. Haldeman and the President and 
Mr. Ehl'Uchman during the period AprU 
U t~ugh 17, 1973, _u follows: 

April 14 
8:55 to 11:31 a.m.: Meeting among the 

President, Mr. Ehrlk:b.n:J&n and Mr. Halde­
man. 

1:65 to 2:13 p.m.: Meeting between the 
President-and Mr. Haldeman. 

2:24 to 3:55 p.m.: Meeting among the 
President, Mr. Ehrllchman and Mr. Halde­
man. 

5:15 to 6:45 p.m.: Meeting among the · 
President, Mr. Ehl'Uchman _and. Mr. Halde­
man. 

11:02 to 11:16 p.m.: Telephone conversa­
tion between the President and Mr. Halde­
man. 

11:22 to 11:53 p.m.: ·Telephone conversa­
tion between the President and 1\.Ir. Ehrlich-
man. 

April 15 
10:35 to 11:15 a.m.: Meeting between the 

President and Mr. Eb.rllchman. 
2:24 to 3:30 p.m.: Meeting between the 

President and Mr. Ehrllchman. · 
3:27 to 3:44 p.m.: Telephone conversation 

between the President and 1\.tr. Haldeman. 
7:50 to 9:15 p.m.: Meeting among the 

President, Mr. Haldeman and Mr. Ehrlich­
man. 

10:16 to 11:15 p.m.: Meeting among the 
President, Mr. Ehrllchman and lllr. Halde­
man. 

April 16 
12:08 -to -12:23 a.m.: - Telephone conversa­

tion between the President and '-tr. Halde­
man. 

8:18 to 8:22 a.m.: Telephone conversation 
between the President and 1\.tr. Ehrllchma~. 

9:50 to 9:59 a.m.: Meeting among the 
President, Mr. Haldeman and 1\tr. Ehrlich­
man. 

10:50 to 11:04 a.m.: 1\.leetlng among the 
President, ll.lr. Haldeman ai1d :P.tr. Er.riich­
man. 

12:00 to 12:31 p.m.: Meetlug among the 
President, 1\.tr. EhrUchman and Mr. Halde­
man. 

3:27 to 4:02 p.m.: Meeting between the 
President and Mr. Ehrllchman (Mr. Ziegler 
present !rom 3:35-4:04 p.m.). 

9:27 to 9:49 p.m.: Telephone co:tvers:nton 
between the President and 1\tr. El1rllchrnan. 

AprU 17 
!l:47 to 9:59 a.m.: Meet!ug between the 

President and 1\tr. Haldeman. 
12:35 to 2:30 ·p.m.: Meeting among the 

Prt>!!dent, 1\tr. Haldeman and Mr. Ehrltch­
man (Mr. Zeigler present from 2:10-2:17 
p.m.). . 

2:39 to 2:40p.m.: Telephone conversation 
b~t-;;ee::. th; r'•w!\!e~;~ ~~ ~:.. ::::Lr~\:;h;;-.a;; 

3:50 to 4:35 p.m.: Meeting among the 
Presldt>nt, '-1:'. :Haldeman and Mr. Ehrlich­
man. 

5:50 to '7:14 p.m.: Meeting among the 
President, ll.tr. Haldeman and Mr. Eb.rllcb­
man (Mr. Rogers present from 5:20-6:19 
p.m.). • 

2. Conversations between the President and 
Mr. Kleindienst and the President and Mr. 
Petersen during the period from April 15 
through 18, 1973, as follows: 

AprU 15 
10:13 to 10:15 a.m.: Telephone conversa­

tion between the President and 'Mr. Klein• 
dlenst. 

1:12 to 2:22 p.m.: 1\.leetl.ng between the 
President and :Mr. Kleindienst. 

3:48 to 3:49 p.m.: Telephone conversation 
between the President and ll.tr. Kleindienst. 

4.:00 to 5:15 p.m.: Meeting among tha 
President, Mr. Kleindienst and Mr. Petersen. 

8:14 to 8:18 p.m.: Telephone conversatlou 
between the Presideut and Mr. Petersen. 

8:25 to 8:26 p.m.: Telephone conversation 
between the President and Mr. Petersen. 

9:39 to 9:41 p.m.: Te!ephone conversation 
between the President &nd Mr. Petersen. 

11:45 to 11:53 p.m.: Telephone conversa­
tion between the President and Mr. Petersen. 

AprU 16 
1:39 to 3:25 p.m.: Meeting between the 

President and Mr. Petersen (1\tr. Zeigler pres­
ent !rom 2:25-2:52 p.m.). 

8:58 to 9:14p.m.: Telephoue conversation 
between the President and Mr. Petersen. 

April 17 
2:46 to 3:49 p.m.: Meeting bet"·een t..'le 

President and 1\tr. Petersen. 
April 18 

2:50 to 2:56p.m.: Telephone cot1ver.satiou 
between the President and ll.tr. Petersen. 

6:28 to 6:37 -p.m.: Telephone conversation 
between the President and Mr. Petersen. 
Memorandum to Committee on the Judiciary 

Respecting Conversations Requuted ou 
Feb:ruary 25, 1974. 
The following sets forth the facta and 

bs.;;es underlying tbe requests !or the con­
versations speci.fl.ed In the letter of Feb­
ruary 25, 1974 from ~fr. Doar to ll.tr. St. Clair: 

(1) Conversations between the President 
and Mr. Haldeman on or about February 20, 
1973, that concern the possible appointment 
of Mr. Magruder to a &ovemment position.. 

Jeb Magruder was deputy dlre<:tor o! the 
Committee to Re-elect the President and par­
ticipated in meetings at which plans tor the 
electronic SUJ'VeUla.nce of the Pres!dent'l> po­
litical opponents were dil!<:ussed (:Magruder, 
2 sse p. 787-'190).-ll<tr. :Magr\lder has ~tlfied 
that h., committed perjury before the grand 
jury investigating the break-in at the ~mo­
cratlc National Comm.lttee Headquarters and 
at the trial of the seven detendazlts in 
Unttea Statu v. Liddy, et al. (Magruder, 2 
sse p. 805). :r.tr. Magruder has testi.fl.ed that 
he-informed Mr. Haldeman in mid-January, 
1973 that he was going to comm!t perjury 
during the trial (Magruder, 2 sse p. 832). 
Mr. Haldeman does not recollect tllls dis­
cussion hut does state that he met '1\'ith llr. 
Magruder on February 14, 1973 and on 
March 2, 1973 about l\!r. Magruder's !utu.re 
(Haldeman, 7 sse p. 2886--87). 

1\.Ir. Dean te~t!fied th:lt In January and Feb­
ruary o! 1973 there wel'e dlscuss!cns about a 
joi;) for Mr. ,.1agruder (Dean. 3 SSC p. 991}). 
Hugh Sloan. the former treMurer of the 
Presid~llt's Campaign Finance Committee, 
U>stilled he told !\fr. Dean that !! ;\lr. lllagru­
tler (who Sloan testified made e1fons to per­
suade him to commit perjUIJl (Slca!l, 2 sse 
p. ~3. 581, 583) v.-ere given an appointment 
requiring Senate con!irmation, Mr. Sloa::J. 
would volnntarU;~" sc<.'k out the Senate Com­
mittee and tcstl:y ag:~lnst Mr. Magrud.-r 
(Sloan, 2 SSC p. 501). r.tr. De::.n h~ further 
tes~iiie<i that on or about t·ebrue.ry 111, 197:> 
he v.·as asked by Mr. Haldema!l to prepo.re au 
agenda of topics which the Pres!dent could 
use as a basis for a meeting w!th lilT. H~de-

man (DeiUl, 3 sse p . 987). That agenda 
raised as a toplc the que.stlc:Jo o: a White 
House pooit.ion for l\.tr. l\.Iagrude:. The ageudOL 
stated tllat Mr. Magruder ~[mjay I» vul­
nerable (Sloan) untU Senate Bearings are 
completed." (Exhlblt 34--34, 3 sse p. 1243) 
Mr. Dean bas testlAed that on or about Feb­
ruary 20, 1973, Mr. Haldeman met with the 
Pl'e3iden~ to discuss the topics covered by 
the memorandum (~an, 3 sse p. 988). 

Mr. Haldeman testified that a; the time he 
received the agenda h& had already told 
1\.fagruder that a White House Job would not 
be possible "but I think the pa!t:t here was to 
check that decision with t!le Pre.>ldent to 
be sure he concurred." (Halde::::.:Ul, 7 sse p. 
2891). In !\.!arch 1973,1\.tr. l\.I+-.oder was ap­
pointed to a $36,000 a rear bv>e.::unent post 
v.·hich did not require Senat~ conl'.rmation 
11\lagruder, 2 sse p. 831; Ha!de:nan. 7 sse 
p. 2887). 

(2) Conversations between t!le President. 
Mr. Haldem:m and Mr. EhrllcX:nan on or 
about Fe:>ruary 27, 1973, tha~: concern the 
assignment o! Mr. Dean to work dtreetly 
wlth the President on Watergate and Water­
Gate-related matters. 

Both Mr. Haldeman and ll!:'. Elll'Uchman 
ha\·e testl1ied that the Presiden~ decided to­
ward the end of February 1973, tl:::at Mr. Dean 
.-_-ould 111,'ork directly v.'lth the President on 
Watergate-re!ated matters and that th!s de· 
c:.o•on was discussed with them 1Ehrllchman. 
<sse p. 27JJ: Haldeman, 7 s...<::e p. 2891). M.-. 
Dea!l h~ testtfi.ed that 111:he:1 he met witl:; 
the President on Februar; 27. 19':'2. the Presi­
dent told him that Watergate ~was takl.l:& 
too much time from Haldeman's and !:hrltch­
mall·s normal duties and ••• they were 
principals in th& matter, a:::.d L therefore. 
could be more objective than they." (~an. 
3 sse p. 991) 

13) Conversations betwl'l'::l t!le Preslcfent 
and AlT. Dean on March 17, 197'3. from 1:2-5 
to 2:10 p.m. and March 20, 19i3 !rom 7:29 
tc 7:43p.m. 

(a) March 17 
Th& President has stat~d t!ut he .firs: 

learned a.t this meeting or the break-iu ct 
the office of Danlet Ellsber;;·s psychiatrl..;: 
v:lllch the '\\"hite Rouse Special lnvestlgatlo~ 
U::Ut cctnmltted In Septembe:- 1S71 tPres~­
dent's Statement August 15, 1!h3, Pres. Doc 
p. 993). 

The White House has also s~:t.ted tha.t ~fr 
Dean told the President on tl::.ts date that uo 
Wbite House aides were ln'l'clved In the 
Watergate burglary except po.>S!b!:; Mr. Stra­
chan and t!let the Prestdent !1!::~-=ested tha! 
1\.!r. Dean, ).{r. Haldeman and ~!r."ihrUchma•• 
testify be-fore the Senate Selec! Committee 
(Emibit 7G-.'>. 4 sse p. 1798-~morandl<rr. 
or Substance or De:m's C&lls a:::.d Meetit•s:s 
'\\":~b the Pretident). -

(b) March 20 
The Wh~te House h3S sal<! t:Oat in the 

co:.use of this phone call from .t'.:2e Preside::: 
to Mr. De:J.n, 1\tr. Dean stated t!:.a.; there was 
not a "scintl!la of evide-nce o! "":ltte Hou;e 
irn·oivement" In Watergate (E:<.l'..:bit 70-A . .; 
sse p. 1798--~temorandum of S::bstance c·~ 
Dean's Ca!ls and Meetings vrt:!! the PrP~1-
-del!t). President Nixon conftrt::P.:! t.>lls state­
me::; (President's Ne"J.·s Con!~rence Au­
gust 22, 1972, Pres. Doc. p. 10191 Mr. De"-:! 
hes testified that durin& this «:&: he ~hi'd­
uled a meeting with tbe Presldene to dlscu,,s 
the facts of W:~.tergate a.rtd t!:~ obstructlo:: 
o! the Watet;;:J.te 1n'l'est1gat!O!l •Dean, 3 SSC 
p. 997-98). 

14) Com:-~:-sa.tions hct.r.·ee;t t~e- Presid'!!; ~ 
a:::.c: !fr Ehr:ich~r.an on March 27. 1973, !r<'m 
11~10 sm. to 1:30 p.m. amt o:: :\larch 30, 
1~ .3 from 12 :0:! to 12:18 p.m. 

(n) March 27 
Mr. Ehr:lct.mnn has tesrt!:t:! that ,m 

March 27, 1973, he met 'l>ith !:::.e Presfder' 
and d.!scussed Whlte House U;·:c:-:-emenl <!I 

tbl' break-In at the Democ:-;;.~~..: Nation .. : 
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c ommit tee Headquarters (EhrUchman, 7 
sse p . 2747) . ~lr. Ehrlichman has test11!.ed 
that the President instructed him to tn!onn 
Attorney General Kleindienst that the Presi• 
dent had no information that Mr. Ehrllch­
man, Mr. Colson, !>lr. De&n. Mr. Haldeman or 
an\" other White House staff bad any prtor 
knowledge of the watergate burglary (Ehr­
llchman, 7 sse p. 2748-49; Exhtblt 99 P· 
2944-45). l.'.lr. EbrUchman has also testU!.ed 
that the President asked him to inquire of 
the Attorney General about the procedures 
for granting immunity (Ehrllchman, 7 sse 

with obstruction of justice, 1-lr. Ehrllcbman 
stated that wlt doesn't really make any dif­
ference any more" since l\lr. Dean and Mr. 
Magruder were talking to the prosecutors 
(Klelndlenat, 9 sse p. 3577). 

8:18 to 8 :22 a.m.: Telephone conTersat !on 
between the President and J.l.lr. Ebr!lc!:can. 
• 9:50 to 9:59 a .m.: 'J14eeting amon; the 
President, 11.-lr. Haldeman and :l.lr. Eb.rUch­
man. 

p. 2760). 
(b) March 30 

The President has said, that after Mr. 
Dean's diSclosures of March 21 he ordered 
new investigations. (President's Statement 
AprU 17, 1973, Pres. Doc. p . . 387; President's 
Statement AprU 30, 1973, Pres. Doc. p. 434; 
President's Statement August 15, 1973, Pres. 
Doc. p. 993) . The President bas stated tha.t 
on this date the President asked l.l.lr. Ehrlich­
man to take over that investigation from Mr. 
Dean (President's Statement August 15, 1973, 
Pres. Doc. p. 993; Ehrllchman, 7 sse p. 2747). 

(5) All conversations between the Presi­
dent and Mr. Haldeman· and the President 
and Mr. Ehrllcbman from Aprtl 14 through 
17, 1973, inclusl\"e. 

(6) All conversations between the Presi· 
dent and !>lr. Kleindienst and the President 
and Mr. Petersen from AprU 15 through 18, 
1913, inclusi\"e. 

(&) Aprll 14, 1973 
The President's reoords indicate th&t the 

following meetings and telephone conversa­
tions took place between the President and 
!>lr. Haldeman and the President and Mr. 
Ebrllchman on AprU 14, 1973: 

8:55 to 11:31 a.m.: Meeting between the 
President and ?.lr. Ehrllehman in the Presi­
dent's EOB omce. (The President's dally dlary 
shows that.Mr. Haldeman was present from 
9:00to 11:30 a.m.). 

1:55 to 2 :13 p.m.: Meeting between the 
President and ?.lr. Haldeman. 

2:24 to 3:55 p.m.: Meeting among the 
President, ?.lr. Ehrllchman and Mr. Halde• 
man in the Oval omce. 

5:15 to 8:45 p.m.: Meeting among the 
President, Mr. Ehrllchman and Mr. Halde· 
man in the President's EOB omce. 

11 :02 to 11 :16 p.m.: Telephone conversa­
tion between the President and Mr. Halde­
man. 

11:22 to 11:53 p.m.: Telephone conversa• 
tlon between the President and :t.lr. Ehrlich· 
man. 

The President bas stated that tt was on 
AprU 14 that Mr. Ehrllcbman reported to 
him the results of the inquiry of the Water­
gate matter which the Preatdent, on March 
30, 1973, ordered Mr. Ebrllcbman to conduct 
(President's Statement August 15, 1973, Pres. 
Doe. p . 993) . ?.lr. Ebrllchman testl1led that 
be infonned the President that Messrs. Dean, 
Magruder and Mitchell were Involved in the 
planning of the Watergate break-In 
(Ehrllcbman, 7 sse p. 2755, 2757"-58, sse 
Exhibit 98 at p . 2915-43). The President, 
accordl~g to ?.lr. Ehrlicbman, ordered that 
the information be turned over to Mr. 
Kleindienst (Ehrllchman, 7 sse p . 2758). 

It was on Aprtl 14 that ?.lr. Magruder in­
formed ?.lr. Ehrllchman that he 9tas giving 
the prosecutors new information wttb re­
spect to the Watergate break-in and ita 
aftermath. (Magruder. 2 sse p. 808); 
Ebrllcbman, 7 sse p . 2765-66). !>lr. Ehrlich• 
man and l\lr. Haldeman knew that l.l.lr. Dean 
already bad been talking to the prosecutors 
and on April 14 Mr. Dean told them that 
?.lr. Ehrllcbman and l.'.lr. Haldeman were tar­
gets of the grand Jury lnvestlgat!on (Dean, 
3 sse p . 1014). ThUS, when Mr. Ehrllchman 
telephoned l\lr. Kleindienst on the evening 
or Aprll a and was advised by the Attorney 
General ·to turn over an· tnrormatlon to-the 
Department of Jus tlee to avoid being charged 

(b) AprU 15, 1973 
The President's records Indicate thli.t the 

following meetings and telephone conversa­
tions took place among the President, Mr. 
Haldeman. l.'.lr. Ehrl1chman, Mr. Kleindienst 
and l.'.lr. Petersen: 

10:13 to 10:15 a.m.: Telephone conversa­
tion, between the President and l\lr. Klein· 
dlenst. 

10:35 to 11:15 a.m.: Meeting between the 
President and ?.lr. 'Ebrllcbman. 

1:12 to 2:22 p.m.: Meeting between the 
President and Mr. Kleindienst. 

2:24 to 3:30 pm.: Meeting between the 
President and 1\.lr. Ebrllcbman. 

3:27 to 3:44 p .m.: Telephone con\'ersatlon 
between the President and Mr. Haldeman. 

3:48 to 3:49p.m.: Telephone conversation 
between the President and Mr. Kleindienst. 

4:00 to 5:15 p.m.: Meeting among the 
President, Mr. Kleindienst and Mr. Petersen. 

7:60 to 9:15 p.m.: Meeting among the 
.President, Mr. Haldeman and Mr. Ehrlich­
man. 

8:14 to 8:18p.m.: Telephone conversation 
between the President and Mr. Petersen. 

8:25 to 8:26 p .m.: Telephone conversation 
between the President and Mr. Petersen. 

9:39 to 9:41 p.m.: Telephone conversation 
between the President and Mr. Petersen. 

10:16 to 11:15 p.m.: Meeting among the 
President, Mr. Ebrllcbman and Mr. Halde­
man. 

11:45 to 11:53-p.m.: Telephone conversa• 
tlon between the President o.nd Mr. Petersen. 

It was on AprU 15 that Mr. Kleindienst 
and Mr. Petersan directly brought to the 
attention of the President the new Informs.· 
tlon which was being conveyed tO the prose­
cutors by l.l.lr. Dean and J.l.lr. Magruder. (Pres­
ident's Statement A\lgust 16, 1973, Pres. Doc 
p. 993). AprU 15 was also the date on which 
the President, beginning at 9:17 p.m., bad 
an important conversation with Mr. Dean 
that the President has stated was not re­
corded because the tape bad run out (Pres­
Ident's Statement November 12, 1973. Pres. 
Doc p. 1330; President's News Conference 
November 17, 1973, Pres. Doc p. 1346-47). Ac• 
cording to 1\lr. Dean the President stated 
at that conversation that he was Joking 
when he said earller that lt would be no 
problem to raise e1,000,000 (I:'ean, 3 SSC p. 
1016). Following the conversation with Mr. 
Dean the President had a meeting wlth :t.lr. 
Ebrllcbman and :t.lr. Hald.eman at which Mr. 
Ehrllcbman called Mr. Gray with respect to 
what happened to documents from Mr. 
Hunt's safe which were given to Mr. Gray in 
June 1972. ?.tr. Gray ln!ormed !.lr. Ehrlich­
man that the documents were destroyed 
(EhrUcllman. 7 sse p. 2675-76). 

As the Ustlng of conversations indicates, 
Immediately following each of his various 
conversations with l.'.lr. Kleindienst or l.l.lr. 
Petersen, the President bad conversations, 
some of which were quite lengthy, with Mr. 
Haldeman or !>lr. Ehrllchman or both. It was 
on AprU 15 that l.'.lr. Petersen suggested to 
the President that Mr. Haldeman and Mr. 
Ehrllchman be tired (Petersen, 9 sse p. 
362&-29). The President stated that he owed 
an obligation of fairness to Mr. Ha!deman 
and Mr. Ebrllcbman (Petersen, 9 SSC p. 
3628). 

(c) Aprtl 16, 1973 . 
The President's records indicate that the 

follow!ng meetings and telephone conversa­
tions took place among the President, Mr. 
Haldeman, !>lr. Ehrllchman, l\lr. Kleindienst 
and Mr. Petersen: 

12:03 to 12 :23 a .m.: Telephon e conversa­
tlon--bet.w~-- .the-President __ and Mr. 
Haldeman. 

10:50 to 11:04 11..m.: Meeting amocg the 
President, 1-lr. Haldeman and Mr. Ehrlich­
man. 

12:00 to 12:31 p.m.: Meeting amo:.g the 
President, 1\lr. Ebrllcbman and Mr. Haldeman. 

1:39 to 3:25 p.m.: Meeting betw~n the 
President and Mr. Petersen (l.l.lr. Ziegler pres­
ent from 2:25 to 2:52p.m.) 

3:27 t~.> 4:02 p.m. : Meeting bet\\"~n the 
President and Mr. Ehrllchman (Mr. Z!e&ler 
present !rom 3:35 to 4:04p.m.) 

8:58 to 9:U p.m.: Telephone eonn~ation 
between the President and Mr. Peteree:l. 

9:27 to 9:49 p.m.: ':felephone conn:-satlon 
between the President and !.lr. Ehrllcllman. 

On Aprll 16, according to :Mr. Dean's testi­
mony. the President asked :t.lr. Dean to algn 
a letter of resignation, but Mr. Dean !ll!d he 
would not realgn.unlesa Mr. Ebrlichman and 
)lr. Haldeman also resigned (Dean, 3 S5C p. 
1017-1018). The President bad furtl::.er dis• 
cussions with Mr. Petersen about the prosecu­
tors' ertdence of Mr. Haldeman and ?.lr. 
Ehrllchrea!l.'s possible Involvement in the 
Watergate matter and the poaaibUlty or 
granting tmmuntty to Mr. Dean (Petersen, 
9 SSC p. 3634; President's Statement Ap:i! 17, 
1973 Pres. Doe p. 38'7) . Again, prt~ to and 
subsequent to his conversations -.rtth :t.lr. 
Dean and Mr. Petersen the PreSident had a 
number of conversations v.-ltb ?.lr. :Ehrlich· 
man and Mr. Haldeman. 

{d) Aprtl 17, 1973 
The President's records indicate that the 

following meetl.I1gs and telephone eonnrsa­
tlons took place among the Presldent. Mr.· 
H!'ldeman, Mr. Ehrllchman, Mr. Kle!.:ldien.st 
and Mr. Petersen: 

9:47 to 9:59 a.m.: Meeting between the 
President and ?.lr •. Haldeman. 

12:35 to 2 :30 p.m.: Meeting amo:::g the 
President, Mr. Haldeman and Mr. Ehrl!c!unan 
(Mr. Ziegler present from 2:10 to 2:17p.m.). 

2:39 to 2:40p.m.: Telephone·con;ersatlon 
between the President and Mr. Eb.r!!cbman. 

2:46 to 3:49 p.m.: Meeting between the 
PreSident and Mr. Petersen. 

3:50 to 4:35p.m.: Meeting amo:1g t!le Pres· 
!dent, ?.lr. Haldeman and 1\.lr. Ehrllc!un&n. 

5:50 to 7:14 p .m.: Meeting a:nong the 
President, Mr. Haldeman and Mr. Ehrllch­
man (~.Rogers present from 5 :20 to 6:19 
p.m.)._ ·-. 

On AprtC 17 .thel'iesiderit' !SSued a ·5tate"--· 
men; that +.here were "major developments" 
tn the Wa.tergate ease and "real progress 
has been m&de on flnding the truth." 
The Presldent also stated that "no tndivtdual 
holding, in the past or at present. a position 
Of major Importance in the administration 
should be gtven Immunity from pi'OieCUtion." 
(Pre!;. Doc. p. 387) Mr. Dean bas testU!.ed 
that by the "no tmmunlty" provision in the 
AprU 17 statement, the President was "quite 
obvtou.sly trying to affect any discus.ston I 
was bavtng wlth the government regarding 
my testimony." Mr. Dean bas stated that 
Mr. Garment, another Presidential Assistant, 
belleved that the "no Immunity" provision 
was I.nserted Into the President's statement 
by ?.lr. Ehrlichmlln (Dean, 3 sse p. 1020) . 

Also, on Aprtl 17, the pattern of the prevl­
oas fe"" days is repeated in that prior to and 
subsequent to conversations bet;oeen the 
President and Mr. Petersen there a.~ numer· 
ous conversations between the Pres!dent and 
!.fr. Haldeman and the President and ~lr. 
Ehrli.:hman. 

(e) AprU 18, 1973 
The President's records tndlcate that the 

follomng meettuss and telephone con>ersa.­
tlons took place between the Pretide!lt and 
1\.lr. Pe tersen : 

2; 50 to 2 :56p.m.: Telephone co::1~ersat1on 
between the President a nd l.fr. Pe!e:sen.-----
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6:28 to 6:37p.m.: Telephone connrsatlon 
between the President and Mr. Petersen. 

on AprU 18, the President learned from 
Mr. Petersen that Mr. Dean had tn!ormed 
the prosecutors of the break-In by Messrs. 
Hunt &nd Liddy of the omce of Dr. Fielding, 
Daniel Ellsberg's psychiatrist. (Preeldent's 
News COnference, August 22, 1973, Pres. Doc. 
p. 1020; Petersen, 9 SSC p. 3631). There was 
also a continuation of the discussion re­
specting possible tmmunity for Mr. Dean dur­
ing which the President said he had a tape 
to prove ·that Mr. Dean had told the Prest• 
dent he had received Immunity (Petersen, 
9 sse p. 3630, 3654:-56). With respect to the 
Fielding break-in the President has stated 
that he fust learned of It on March 17, 1973, 
and that on April 18 he instructed Mr. Peter­
sen to stay out of the matter because It 
involved•natlonal security. .. .. .. • .. 

In calling for the above conversations the 
committee Is seeking to determine: 

Whether any of the conversations in any 
way bear upon the knowledge or lack of 
knowledge of, or action or inaction by the 
President and/or &ny of his senior adminis­
tration olftclals with respect to, the investi­
gation of the Watergate break-in by the De· 
partment of Justice, the Senate Select Com­
mittee, or any other legislative, judicial, ex­
ecutive or administrative body, including 
members of the White House staff; 

Whether any of the conve1'!5atlons in any 
'1\'ay bear upon the President's knowledge or 
lack of knowledge of, or participation or lack 
of participation in, the acts of obstruction 
of justice &nd conspiracy charged or other­
wise referred to in the Indictments returned 
on March 1 tn the District Court for the Dis· 
trlct of Columbia in the case of U.S. v. 
Haldeman, et al.; and 

Whether any of the conversations In any 
way bear_ upon the President's knowledge or 
lack of knowledge of, or participation or lack 
or partlclpa.tlon in, the acts charged or other­
wise referred to in the Informations or in• 
dlctments returned in the District Court for 
the District or Columbia in the cases of U.S. 
v. Magruder, U.S. v. Dean, u.s. v. Chapin and 
U.S. v. Eh.rUch.num, or other acts which may 
constitute Ulegal activities. 

(Copy) 
By Authority of the House of Representa­

tives of the congress of the United States 
or America 

To Benjamin Marshall, .or hiS duly author­
Ized represe!l tattve: 

You are hereby commanded to summon 
Richard M. Nixon, President of the United 
States of America, or any subordinate oftlcer, 
olftclal or employee With eustody or control 
of the things described in the attached 
schedule, to be and appenr before the Com­
mJttee on the Judiciary of the House of Rep­
resentatives of the United States, of which 
the Hon. Peter W. Rodino, Jr. is chairman, 
and to bring with him the things speclfied 
in the schedule attached hereto and ma.cle a 
part hereof, 1n their chamber ln the city of 
Washington, on or before May 22, 1974, at 
the hour of 10:00 A.M., then and there to 
produce and deliver said things. to 5!lld Com­
mittee, or their duly nuthorized representa­
tive, in connection with the CommJttee's In­
vestigation authorized and directed by H. 
Res. 603, adopted February 6, 1974. 

Herein fall not, and make return of this 
summons. 

Witness my h&nd and the ~al of the House 
ot Representatl~es of the United States, at 
tlte city of Washington, this 15th day of 
May1974. 

Attest: 

PETER W. RoDINO, Jr .. 
Cit airman. 

W. PAT JENNINGS, 
Clerk. 

On behalf of Richard M. Nixon, President 
of the United. States of America, I aceept 

service of the original subpoena, of which the 
foregoing Is a copy. 

Da.ted: May 15, 1974. 
Received by: 

JAMES D. ST. Cull!. 
Special coun!el to the President. 

Schedule of Things Required To Be Pro­
duced Pursuant to Subpoena or the 
Committee on the Judiciary 
The President's daUy diaries (as renected 

on u.s. Government Printing omce Form 
"1972 0-472-086" or &ny predecessor or suc­
cessor forms) for the pertocl April through 
July 1972, February through AprU 1973, July 
12 through July 31, 1973 and October 1973. 

(Copy) 
By AUthority of the House of Representa­

tives of the Congresa of the United 
States of America 

To BenJamin Marshall, or his duly authorized 
representative: 

You -are hereby commanded to summon 
Richard M. Nixon, President of the United 
States of America, or any subordinate omcer, 
omclal or employee with custody or control of 
the things described In the attached sched­
ule, to be and appear before the Committee 
on the Judiciary of the House or Representa­
tives of the United States, of which the Hon. 
Peter W. Rodino, Jr., is chairman, and to 
bring With hlm the things speclfied in the 
schedule attached hereto and made a part 
hereof, in their chamber in the city of Wash­
ington, on or before May 22, 1974, at the hour 
of 10:00 A.M. then and there to produce 
and deUver said. things to said Committee, 
or their duly authorized representative, in 
connection with the Committee's investign.­
tion authorized &nd directed by H. Res. 803, 
adopted February 6, 1974. 

Herein fall not, and make return of this 
summons. 

Witness my hand and the sea.l or the House 
of Representatives of the United State11. nt 
the city or Washington, this 15th dar of May 
1974. 

PETEII W. RoDINO, Jr., Chairman. 
On behalf or Richard M. Nixon, President 

of the United States of America. I accept 
service of the original subpoena, of v;h!ch the 
foregoing Is a copy. 

Dated: May 15, 1974. 
Received by: 

JAMES D. ST. CLAIII. 
Special counsel to the President. 

Schedule of Things Requtred To Be Produced 
Pursu&nt to Subpoena of the Committee 
on the Judiciary 
All tapes: dtctabelts, othel' electronic and 

mech&nlcal recordings, and transcripts, 
memoranda, notes or other writings of things 
relating to the following conversations: 

1. Meetings among the President, Mr. 
Haldeman a.nd Mr. Mitchell on April 4, 1972 
from 4:13 to 4:50p.m. and between the Presi­
dent and :Mr. Haldeman !rom 6:03 to 6:18 
p.m. 

2. Conversations on June 20, 1972 between 
the President and 1\lr. Haldeman, and tl:.e 
President and Mr. Colson, as follows: 

2:20 to 3:30 p.m.: Meeting between the 
President and :Mr. Colson. 

4:35 to 5:25 p.m.: Meeting between the 
. President and Mr. Haldeman. 

7:52 to 7:59p.m.: Telephone com·ersatlon 
between the President and. Mr. Haldeman. 

8:04 to 8:21 p.m.: Telephone conversation 
between the President and Mr. Colson. 

8:42 to 8:50p.m.: Telephone conversation 
between the Presldect and l\Jr. Haldeman. 

11:33 p.m. &;2o to 12 :05 a.m. 6 21.: Tele­
phone conversation between the Preslde:.t 
and 1\Ir. Colson. 

3. Conversations on June 23. 1972 between 
the President and Mr. Haldeman, as follows: 

10:04 to 10:39 a.m.: Meeting between the 
President and Mr. Haldeman (Mr. Ziegler 
present from 10:33-10·39 a.m.) 

1:04 to 1:13 p.m.: Meeting bet,..-een the 
President &nd Mr. Haldeman. 

2:20 to 2:45 p .m.: Meeting be~ween the 
Presldent and 1\lr. Haldeman f Mr. Ziegler 
present from 2:4G-2:43 p.m.) 
Memorandum Setting Forth Facts and Bases 

Underlying AprU 19, 1974, Request for 
Presidential Conversations Necessary for 
Committee's Inquiry into Wa:ergate a.nd 
Aftermath 
The following sets forth the facts and bases 

underlying the request cont¢ed in Mr. 
Doar's letter to Mr. St. Clair. d:1.:r- April 1!1. 
1974, for Presidential conversatlo:os necessary 
for the House Judiciary Coz::.mlttee's in­
quiry Into Watergate and Its aftermath. An 
asterisk fonowing ·a speclfied conversation 
indlca.tes that the Special Prosecutor has 
subpoenaed auch conversation for the trial of 
the Indictment in United Statu v. Mitchell, 
et al. tUed on March 1, 1974 respecting Water­
gate and lts aftermath. 

(1) Meetings among the President, :Mr. 
Haldeman, and l.tr. Mitchell on April 4, 1972, 
from 4:13 to 4:50 p.m. and between the 
President and Mr. H£.ldeman from 6:03 to 
6:18p.m.• 

Mr. Magruder has testl.tied that on 
:March 30, 1972 Mr. Mitchell approved l\lr. 
Liddy's pl&n for eleetrontc surnUlance or 
the President's political opponents and an 
entrr lnto the Democratic National Commit­
tee Headquarters in Washington. (Magruder, 
2 SSC 79~5). Mr. Magruder called Mr . . 
Strachan and indicated the proJ~ bad been 
approved, and Immediately thereafter, In 
early AprU, 1972, Mr. Strachan sent a memo­
randum to Mr. Haldeman which stated that 
a. sophisticated political intelligence-gather­
ing system fo;:o CRP had been approved 
with a. budget or $300.~. (Magruder, 2 sse 
795; Strachan, 6 sse 2441. 2452). Mr. 
Strachan bas testified that be prepared a 
talking paper for a meeting between Mr. 
Haldem&n and ~tr. Mitchell which took place 
at 3:00p.m. on AprU 4, 1972, and this talk· 
ing pa.per Included a reference to tbe 
sopblStlcated tntelllgence-gather".ng system. 
!Strachan. 6 SSC 2453--64). Mr. Haldeman 
has tcstl1led that the 3:00 p.m. meeting v;as 
"In conjunction with" the meeting com­
mencing at 4:13 p.m. among the President, 
li.Ir. Mitchell and Mr. Haldeman durtng which 
matters relating to the political campaign 
and ITT were diScussed. (Haldeman, 8 sse 
318o-81). Mr. Haldeman has testi!ied tha.t bls 
notes of the meeting among the President, 
Mr. Haldeman and Mr. Mitchell do not In­
dicate a discussion of Intelligence. (Halde­
man. 7 sse 2881 ) . Not long after the 
meeting among the President, Mr. Haldeman 
and Mr. Mitchell ended, the President met 
with Mr. Haldeman alone. 

(2) Speclfied conversations on .June 20, 
1972, between the President and Mr. Halde­
man. and the President and Mr. Colson. 

The President's records set forth that the 
fo!lo-;;-tng meetings and telephone conversa­
tions took place between the Pre~!dent and 
1\Ir. Haldeman and the President and Mr. 
Colson on June 20, 1972: 

2:20 to 3:30 p.m.•: Meeting be~':t'een the 
President and Mr. Colson. 

4:35 to 5:25 p.m.: Meeting bet;nen the 
President and Mr. Haldeman. 

7:52 to 7:59 p.m.: Telephone co::.orersatlon 
between the President and 1\Ir.lialdeman. 

8:M to 8:21 p.m.•: Telephone CO!::.·ersatlon 
between the President and 1\Ir. Colson. 

8:42 to 8:50p.m.: Telephone co!lversatlon 
bettreen the President and Mr. Ha!dPman. 

11 :33 p.m., 6 ' 20 • to 12:05 a.m.: Telephone 
cotwersatlon bern·een the Preslder:: and Mr. 
Colson. 

At sn enrllt>r meeting on June 2'l b<!twt>el'. 
l\Ir Haldeman and the President o1! -26-11 :45 

• Conversations followed by a= s:;terilsk 
ha.ve been subpoenaed by the Watergate 
Special Prosecution Force. 
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a.m.), tbe Watergate matter wn.s one of tbe 
items discussed. (Haldeman's Notes, Exhibit 
61 In Re Subpoena Du.cu Tecum ("SDT"), 
Misc. No. 47-73). The tape ot that conversa­
tion contained an 18 minute and 15 second 
hum which obliterated tbe conversation. Also 
on June 20, a meeting among Mr. Ehrlich· 
man, 1\Ir. Mitchell, Mr. Haldeman, :Mr. Dean. 
and Mr. Kleindienst occurred to discuss the 
Watergate Incident and Investigation. (Ehr­
llchman, 7 sse 2822; Haldeman, 8 sse 3039-
40). Mr. Strachan has testified that on tht.s 
date, following l\.11'. Haldeman's Instructions. 
he shredded the Political Matte::s Memo• 
randum conta.lnJ.ng the reference to tbe plan. 
for electronic surveillance form(llated by 
Gordon Liddy. (Strachac, 6 SSe 2458, 2442). 
On the evening of June 20, 1972, the Pres!· 
dent spoke by telephone to Mr. Mitchell. A 
tape of tbla conversation was subpoenaed by 
the Special Prosecutor but was not producecl 
as the President stated that it wns not re­
corded. (President's Statement, November 12, 
1973; Pres. Doc. 1329). The President's re­
corded recollection of this conversation was 
produced. 1\..tr. Mitchell has testltled that in 
this conversation he and the President dJ&­
cussed the Watergate break-In and Mr. 
Mitchell expressed regret that he had not 
kept better control over his men, (Mitchell, 
4 sse 1633). Atter tht.s conversation with Mr. 
Mitchell, the President bad the four tele­
phone conversations specitl.ed with Mr. Halde-

. man and Mr. Colson. 
(3) SpecH!ed conversations on June 23, 

1972 between. the President ap4 Mr. Halde­
man. 

The President's records set forth that the 
following meetings took place between the 
President and Mr. Haldeman on June 23, 
1972: 

10:04 to 10:39 a.m.•: Meeting between the 
President and Mr. Haldeman (Mr. Zieglel' 
present from 10:33 to 10:39 a.m.). 

1:04 to 1:13 p.m.•: Meeting between the 
President and Mr. Haldeman. 

2:20 to 2:45 p.m.•: Meeting between the 
President and Mr. tlaldeman (Mr. Zieglel' 
present from 2:40 to 2:43p.m.) 

l\.{1'. Haldeman bas testltied that on. the 
basl5 of information supplied by !.1"r. Dean 
to the effect that the FBI belleved that the 
CIA mlght have been Involved in the Water• 
gate break-in, he raised the possibility of 
CIA · involvement with the President on 
June 23, 1972. (Haldeman, 8 sse 3040-41). 
~{f. Haldeman also testified th&t the Presi­
dent ordered Mr. Haldeman and };tr, Ehl'Uch• 
man to meet with Mr. Helms and Mr. Walters 
at ·the .CIA to determine the CIA's Involve­
ment and interest in the Watergate break-ln. 
and to request Mr. Walters to meet with 
Acting FBI Director Mr. Gray to Insure that 
the PBI's investigation of the Watergate 
participants not be expanded into unrelated 
Jllll.tters which could lead to disclosure of 
non-Watergate related covert CIA operations 
or other non-related national security actlvl· 
ties that had been undertaken previously by 
some of the Watergate participants. (Halde­
man, 7 sse 2881-85). The President bas 
stated that b_e instructed Mr. Haldemsn and 
Mr. Ehrllchm&n to insure that the FBI in· 
vestlgatlon of the Watergate break-In dl:1 
not expose either unrelated covert operations 
ot the CIA or the activities of the White 
House Special Investigations Unit. (Presi­
dent's Statement, May 22. 1973, Pres. Doc. 
696). 1\.tr. Haldeman. and Mr. Ehrllchman did 
meet With 1\.tr. l!elms and General Wal­
ters of the CIA on June 23, 1972, at 1 :35 
p .m. The three meetings specltied abo>e be­
tween the P!'esiden,; and Mr. Haldem&n pre-. 
ceded and followed tile meetl.:lg among li.Ir. 
Haldeman, Mr. Ehrllchman and the repre­
sentatives of the CIA. (Ellrllchman, 7 SSC 
2712; Walters' Memorandum, SSC Exhibit 
101, 7 sse 2948; Haldeman, a sse 3041). At 

-----·~34 -p.m.;-General Walters met "'With Mr. 
Gray of the FBI and .stat-ed-the.~-the FBI 
Watergate Investigation sb.ould not be pur-

l!nled lnto Mell:lco and t~hould be tapered o!r 
at the ftve·people' arrested on June 17, 1972. 
(Walters' Memorandum of Meeting wttb Mr. 
Gray, SSC Exhibit 129, 9 sse 3815; Gray 9 
sse 3452). Mr. Gray agreed to postpone two 
interviews involving funds in the bank 
account of Bern&rd Barker, one o:t the men 
arrested In the Democratic National Com­
mittee headquarters. 

[Copy) 
By Authority of the House of Repre­

sentatives of the Congress of tlle United 
States of America 
To Benjamin :t.tarsball, or his duly author­

Ized representative: 
You are hereby commanded to summon 

Richard M. Nixon, President of the United 
States of America., or &ny subordl.n.a.te oflicel', 
ofliclal 01' "mployee with cuatody or control 
of t!;le 1hlngs described in the attached 
schedule, to be and appear before tbe Com­
mittee on the Judiciary of the House of 
Representatives of tlle United States, of 
which the Hon. Peter W. Rodino, Jr. 1s chair· 
man, and to-bring with b1m the things specl· 
fl.ed 1n the schedule attached hereto and 
made a pa1'1: hereof, 1n their chamber 1n the 
city of Washington, on or before June 10, 
19'7f, at the hour of 10:00 A.M. then and 
there to produce and deliver &ald tbtngs to 
aald Committee, or their duly authorized rep­
resentative, in contecUon with the Comm!t­
tee•s investigation authorized and dl.rected 
by H. Res. 803, adopted February 6, 1974. 

Herein fall not, and make return of Cl1ll 
summons. 

Witness my hand and the seal of the House 
of Representatives of the United States, at 
the clty of Wa.shlngton, this 30th day of 
May, 1974. 

Peter W. Rodino, Jr., Chatrman. 
PE'n:R \V, RoDINO, Ja., 

Chairman. 
Attest: 

W. PAT Jc.'NINGS, 
Clerk. 

On belmlt of Richard M. Nixon, President 
of the United States of America., I accept 
aervtce of the original subpoena, of which the 
foregoing 1s a copy. 

Dated: 5/31, 1974. 
Received by James D. st. Clair. 
Special Counsel to the Pres1dent. 

Schedule o! Things Required To Be Produced 
Pursuant to Subpoena of the Co:nmlttee 
on the Judlctacy 
A. All tapes, dictabelta, other electronic 

a!1.d mechanical recordings, transcripts, mem­
oranda, notes and other writings and thlnga 
relating to the following conversations: 

"1. Meeting on the morning of November 15, 
1972 among or between Mr. Haldeman, Mr. 
Ehrlichman and Mr. Dean in the President's 
oflice at Camp David. 

2. Conversation. in which the President par­
ticipated after December 8, 1972 (the date 
Mr. Hunt's wife died) during which there 
was a discussion that a commutation of the 
sentence for Mr. Hunt coUld be considered 
on the ba.sls ot Mr. Hunt's wife's death. 

3. Meeting a.nd telephone conversation on 
January 5, 1973 .betw.H!Lthe...l'r.~ic1..e.ttt a.nd 
Mr. Colson from 12:02 to 1:02 p.m. and froin. 
7:38 to 7:58p.m. respectively. 

4. Meetings between the President and Mr. 
Colson on. February 13, 1973 !rom 9:48 to 
10:52 a.m. and on February 14, 1973 from 
10:13 to 10:49 a.m. 

5. Ueet!ng between the President and Mr. 
Dean on February 27, 1973 from 3:55 to 4:20 
p.m. 

6. Conve~tlons on 1\.farch 1, 1973 between 
the President and Mr. Dean. as follo'll-s: ' 

9:18 to 9:46 a .m.: Meeting between the 
President a.nd Mr. Dean. 

10:36 to 10:44 a.m.: Meeting between the 
President a.nd Mr. Dean (Mr. Klsstn..--er was 

-present .untU . .10;37 a.m.) r 
1:06· to 1:14 p.m.: Meeting between th• 

President and Mr. Dean, 

7. Meeting between the President a:ld 1\.tr. 
Dean. on l\.larcb. 6, 1973 from 11:49 a.m. to 
12:00 p.m. 

8. ~1ephone conversations betv:-ee:::z. tlle 
President and Mr. Colscn on March HI, 1973, 
trom 7:53 to 8:12 p.m., and on Ma.'"l!h 19, 
1973, from 8:34 to 8:58p.m. 

9. Conversations on March 20, 1973 amo"!lg 
or between. the President, Mr. H:lldeliU:l and 
Mr. Ehrlichman, a.s follows: 

10:47 a.m. to 12:10 p.m.: Meeting be~n 
the Pftsidcnt and Mr. Haldeman (Mr. 
Ehrllcbman present from 11:40 a.:..-12:10 
p.m.). 

4:28 to 5;39 p.m.: Meeting betwee:t the 
President and Mr. Ehrllchman.. 

6:00 to 7:10 p.m.: Meeting betw~:t the 
President and Mr. Haldeman. 

10. Conversations on March 21, 1973 be­
tween the President and Mr. Ehrltcbms.n and 
the ~!dent and Mr. Colson, as follows: 

9:15 to 10:12 a.m.: Meettng between the 
President and Mr. Ehrtlchman. 

7:53 to 8:24p.m.: Telephone eonversa~on. 
between the President and Mr. Colson. 

11. Meeting between the Pre&ldent and 
Mr. Haldemsn on. March 22, 1973 from 9:11 
to 10:35 a.m. 

12. ~lephone conversations between the 
President and Mr. Colson on AprU 12. 1973 
from 7:31 to 7:48p.m. 

13. Two telephone conversations be~n 
Mr. Ehrlichman and Mr. Gray on Ap:tl 15. -
1973 bet97een 10:16 an:111:15 p.m. 

14:. Telephone conversation bet'll"een. the 
President and Mr. Dean on. AprU 17, !973 
trom 9:19 to 9:25a.m. 

15. Con"l'ersatlons on AprD 18, 1973 among 
01' between the President, Mr. Haldeman and 
Mr.l!:b.rlichman, as follows: 

12:05 to 12:20 p.m.: Telephone =~rsa­
tlon. between. the President and Mr. Halde-
man. • 

3:05 to 3:23 p.m.: Meeting between the 
President and Mr. Ehrllcbman. 

6:30 to 8:05 p.m.: Meeting among the 
President, Mr. Ehrllcl!.man. and Mr. Hald&­
man. 

16. Conversations on. April 19, 1973 among 
or between. the President, :t.tr. Haldei!l.Sll. A1"r. 
Ehrlichma.n and !.tr. Petersen. as fo::>ows: 

9:31 to 10:12 a.m.: Meeting among the 
Preside-nt, Mr. Haldeman and Mr. Ellrllch­
man. 

10:12 to 11:07 a.m.: Meeting between the 
President and Mr. Petensen. 

1:03 to 1:30 p.m.: Meeting between the 
President and Mr. Ebrlichman. 

5:15 to 5:45 p.m.: Meeting between the 
PreSident and Mr. Ehrllcbman. 

9:37 to 9:53 p.m.: Telephone coiK-e:satlon. 
between the President and :r.t:r. Haldeman. 

10:54 to 11:04 p.m.: Telephone conversa­
tion. between. the President and Mr. Drllch· 
man. 

17. Conversations on April 20, 1973 among 
or between the President, Mr. Halde:tt:a!l and 
Mr. Ehrlichman., as followa: 

u :07 to 11:23 a.m..: M-:ettng between the 
President and Mr. lU!dema.n. 

12:15 to 12:34 p.m.: Meeting am?llg the 
President, Mr. Baldem:m and Mr. EbrUc!lman 
(Mr. KJ.sslngel' :was present until 12:16 p.m.) 

. .18. Conve~ on April 25, 1973 among 
or between the President, 1\tr. Haldeman, Mr. 
Ehrlicbm.ali, Mr. Wilson and Mr. Strickler, as 
follows: 

approld.matety 9:25 to appro:ortmate!r 10:45 
a.m.: Meeting among the President, ~- wu­
son and ~1"r. Strickler. 

11:06 a.m. to 1:55 p.m.: Meeting am-:-::g the 
President, Mr. H:li:leman a.ncl Ur. ~llcb· 
man. 

4:40 to 5:35 p.m.: Meetlnp: betv:-~~ the 
President and 1\.tr. Hatdem:m (l\tr. na:: p:-es­
ent from 5 :30 to 5 :3.2 p .m.) 

6:57 to 7:14 p.m.: Telephone con"l'e-!";at!on 
between the Pres!dent and 1\Ir. Halde::an. 

7:17 to 7:19 p.m.: 'l'e!epbone con"l'f!'!'Sa~ !on 
between the President and ~ Ehrllcl:m&n. 

7 :25 to 7~39 p .m .: Telephone- con.-e~ton 
between the Preslc!ent and Mr. Ehr!lchmau. 
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7:46 to 7:53p.m.: Telephone conversation 

between the President and Mr. Haldeman. 
19. Conversations on April 26, 1973 among 

or between the President, Mr. Haldeman and 
Mr. Ehrllchman, as follows: 

8:55 to 10:24 a.m.: Meeting between the 
President and :Mr. Haldeman. 

3:59 to 9:03 p.m.: Meeting between the 
President and Mr. Haldeman (Mr. Ehrllch­
man was present from 6:57 to 7:14p.m.) 

20. Telephone conversations on June 4, 
1973 between the President and Mr. Halde­
man from 10:05 to 10:20 p.m. and !rom 10:21 
to 10:22 p.m. 

B. All papers and things (including re­
cordings) prepared by, sent to, received by or 
at any time contained in the tiles of, B. R. 
Haldeman, John D. EhrUchman, Charles W. 
Colson, John Dean, DI and Gordon Stra­
chan to the ext-ent that sucb papers or things 
relate or refer directly or indirectly to the 
break-In and electronic surveiDJUlce of the 
Democratic National Committee Headquar­
ters In the Watergate omce buUding during 
May and June of 1972 or the Investigations 
of that break-in by the Department of Jus­
tice, the Senate Select Committee on Presi­
dential campaign Activities, or any other 
legislative, judicial, executive or adminis­
trative body, including members of the White 
House staff. · 
Memorandum Setting Forth Facts and 

Bases Underlying Proposed Subpoena for 
Presidential ConversatlollJI Necessary for 
the committee's Inquiry into Watergate 
and Aftermath 
The following sets forth the facts and 

bases underlying the proposed subpoena 
dated May 30, 1974 tor Presidential conver­
sations necessary tor the House Judiciary 
committee's Inquiry into Watergate and Its 
aftermath. An asterlslt following a specl1ied 
conversation indicates that the Special Prose­
cutor has subpoenaed such con>ersatlon for 
the trlal of the Indictment in United States 
v. Mitchell, et Ill., tiled on March 1, 1974, 
respecting Watergate and Its aftermath. 

(1) Meeting on the morning of Novem­
ber 15, 1972 among or between Mr. Halde­
man Mr. EhrUchman and Mr. Dean in the 

' President's.omce at Camp David. • 
Dean testUied tha.t on November 15, he 

met at Camp David with Haldeman and 
Ebrlichman to inform ·them of the increased 
demands tor money transmitted by Hunt's 
lawyer through O'Brien to the White House. 
At that meeting Dean played a tape of a con. 
versation between Colson and Hunt during 
whlch Bunt made demands for money. (Dean, 
3 sse 969; Transcript, sse Exhibit 152, 9 
sse 3888-91). Also a.t that meeting Dean 
testl1ied that Ehrllchman and Haldeman said 
the President had declded that based on in­
formation linking Chapin with Segrettl's 
campaign activities, Chapin would have to 
leave the White House staff (Dean, 3 SSC 
966). 

(2) Conversation In which the President 
participated after December 8. 1972 (the date 
Mr. Bunt's wlfe died) during which there 
was a discussion that a commutation of the 
sentence tor Mr. Hunt could be considered on 
the basis of Mr. Bunt's wife's death.• 

Materials presented to the Committee in 
executive session indicate that such a con-
versation took place. . 

(3) Meeting and telephone conversations 
on January 5, 1973 betv;een the President 
and :Mr. Colson from 12:02 to 1:02 p.m.• and 
from 7:38 to 7:58 p.m.• respectively. 

On Janua.ry 3, 1973 1n n. meeting among 
Ehrllchman. Colson and Dean. Dean has tes­
tt.e.ed that Colson snld he felt It '\\·as Impera­
tive that Hunt be given some assurances of 
executive clemency. Ebrlichman said, ac­
cording to Dean, that he 'll;ould speak to the 
President and that Colson should not talk 
to the President about this matter. Despite 
Ehrllchman•s wnrntng:Dean testified that on 
Janua.ry 5, 1973, following a meeting among 

Ehrllchman, Colson a.nd Dean, eo:son told (7) Meeting between the President and 
Dean tba.t he d!d discuss the oft'er of execu- Mr. Dean on March 6, 1973, from 11:49 a.m. 
tlve clemency with the President (Det\n, 3 to 12:00 p.m. 
sse 973-74) Dean also testl1ied that In March Dean has testified that at this meeting 
and April, 1973, the President stated that the President reminded Dean th:~ot b.e should 
he previously bad discussed with Colson the report directly to him and not Involve Hal­
posslblllty of executive clemency for Hunt. deman and Ehrllchman tn Watergate-related 
(Dean, 3 SSC 995, 1017). Ehrllchman has matters. (Dean, 3 SSC 994). The White House 
testltled that he met with Colson on Janu- has stated that executive prlvUf!e guideline:; 
ary 3 and told hJm that under no circum- v;ere discu.osed at this meetln~. ac.d It was 
stances should executive clemency be dls- d<:3lded that executive- prlvUege would cover 
cussd (EhrUchman, 7 sse 2770-71; 2847-48). former White House personnel as well as 

(4) Meetings between the President and present personnel. (Exhibit 70-A, 4 sse 
:Mr. Colson on February 13, 1973. from 9:48 1796-Memorandum of aubsta!l.ce or Dean'3 
to 10:52 a.m. • and on February 14, 1973. from calls and meetings with the President) . 
10:13 to 10:49 a.m.• (8) Telephone conversation~ between the 

Material in the possession of the Commit- President and Mr. Colson on Msrch 16. 1973, 
tee indicates that in mid-February 1973 C<ll- from 7:53 to 8:12 p.m. and on March 19, 
son and the President discussed the Water- 1973, trom 8:34 to 8:58p.m. 
gate matter. Also, in a newspaper Interview on March 16, 1973, David Shapiro, Colson's 
Colson stated that during a February 14, Jaw partner, met with Hunt. Bunt has testl-
1973 meeting he told the President, "you've fied that he had expected to meet wtth Col· 
got to call Mitchell In and have hlm accept son and not Shapl.ro. During this meeting. 
his responslblllty" for the Watergate matter. Hunt told Shapiro that he needed money. 
The President replied, according to Colson, prior to hls sentencing. Bunt felt that 
that whlle he wanted to resolve the Water· Shapiro should convey au Hunt had said to 
gate matter, he was not wllllng to do so "at Colson. (Bunt, 9 sSO 3705-06). JJatertal ln 
the expense of making .an Innocent person a the possession of the Committee indicates 
scapegoat." (NetD York Ttme.!, Interview with that Shapiro reported to Colson on h1s con-
Mr. Colson, June 10, 1973) >ersatlon wlth Hunt. 

(5) Meeting between the President and (9) Specl1ied conversations on. March 20. 
Mr. Dean on February 27, 1973, from 3:ll5 to 1973, among or between the President, Mr. 
4:20 p.m.• Haldeman and Mr. Ehl'Uch:man. 

This is the first meeting of Dean With the The President's records set forth that the 
President since September 16, 1972. Dean has following meetings took place between the 
testl1ied that the President told h1m that President, Haldeman and Ehrllchman on 
Watergate "was taking up too much tlme March 20, 1973: 
from Haldeman's and Ehrllchman's normal 10:47 a.m. to 12:10 p.m.•: Meeting be­
duties and ... they were prlnclpa.ls in the tween the President and Mr. Haldeman (Mr. 
matter, and I, therefore, could be more obJec· Eb.rlichman present from 11 :40 am. to 12: 10 
tlve than they." Dean also testl1ied that he p.m.). 
told the President that he was not snre ,.:26 to 5:30 p.m.: Meeting between the 
Watergate could be confined indefinitely, and . President and Mr. Ehrllcbman.. 
the President told Dean "we would have to 6:00 to 7:10 p.m.•: Meeting between th~ 
fight back." (Dean, 3 SSC 991~2). 'l'he White President and .Mr. Haldeman. 
Bouse has stated that executive privilege Materials presented to the Committee 1n 
and the Senate Select Committee "''ere dis· executive session indicate that Haldeman-- -­
cussed at thls meeting. (Exhibit 70:-A. 4 sse spoke wtth the President about the Water-
1796-:Memorandum of substance o! Dean's gate matter on this date, the day prior to 
calls and m~etings with the President). Dean's disclosures or White House invol>e-

(6) Specified Conversations on ).:larch 1, ment to the President on March 21, 1973. 
1973, between the President and Mr. Dean. Also, Dean has testl1ied that on or about 

The President's records indicate that the March 20, 1973, he Informed Ehrlichman o! 
following meetings took place bet'lll"een the Hunt's threat to tell about the "seamy 
President and Dean on March 1, 1973: things" he had done for Ehrllc:bman unless 

9:18 to 9:46 a.m.: Meeting bet'lll"een the he received additional money. cDean, 3 sse 
President and hlr. Dean. 999). Ehrllchman on March 20 became con· 

10:36 to 10:44 a.m.: Meeting between the cemed that Hunt's blackmail attempt might 
President and }.lr. Dean. lead to the exposure o! the Speclal Investiga. 

1:06 to 1:14 p.m.: Meeting between the tions Unlt. (Ehrllchman, 6 .S...C::C 2565). Ehr-
Presldent and Mr. Dean. Uchman bas testl1ied that afloat this time he 

Dean testltled that on March 1 the Prest- had a conversation with the President about 
dent asked him questions about the ongoing the break·ln at the omce or Dr. Fteldlng. 
confirmation hearings for Gray, and asaured I Ehrllchman, 6 sse 2551) • 

1 th t 1 f ha ClO) Specttled conversations on March 21. 
h m a t wa.s proper or Dean to ve re· 1973, between the President and Mr. Ehrllch-
ceived FBI reports about the Watergate in- man and the President and J.lr. Colson. 
vestlgation. Dean testified the President told The President's . records indlcate that the 
him that Gray should not turn o\·er Water• 
gate materials to the Senate Judiciary Com- following meetings and tel~phon~ conversa· 
mlttee. Dean told the President that he had tiona took place between the President and 
met with William Sullivan, a former FBI £brllchman. and the PreSident and Colson 
oll1clal, and Sullivan had indicated that the on March 21,1973: 
FBI 'bad been used for- ·pollttcal purposes tn-~ _ 9:15 to 10:~2 !l.m.•: ~eetmg betwee~ · th~ 
past administrations: the President instruct- President and .Mr. Ehrbchman. · 
ed Dean to get this information about FBI 7:53 to 8:24p.m.•: Telephone conversation 
practices from Sullivan. Dean testified also between the PreSident and J.lr. Colson. 
that the President discussed executive prtvt- The 9:15 to 10:12 a.m. meeting with 
lege during these meetings. (Dean, 3 SSC Ehrllch~an Immediately preceded the ~-
993-94). The White House has stated that on tdent's 1\farcb 21 meeting with Dean (10:12-
:March 1 at a meeting with Dean the President 11:55 a.m.) at which time the President satd 
prepared tor his press conference on l\larch 2, he first learned of the moner payment!; to 
and It was dec:lded that the IUlS'III"er to the the Watergate defendants ac.d the atte.m?: 
question o! why Deau 'll.·as sitttn~ In on FBI of one of the defendants to blackmail t~e 
Interviews during the Watergate lnvestlga- V.'hlte House. (President's s::..uemem Au­
tion was that Dean w·as conducting an tn- gust 15, 1973, Pres. Doc. 9921. As indtcat~ 
vesttgatlon for the President. The President above, it also came shortly after Ehrllchm:ut 
asked Dean to 'Wl'ite a report. (Exhibit 7()-A, learned of Runt's alleged b!ac:tmaU threat. 
4 sse 1796-Memorar.dum of substance of The telephone con>ersatton between the 
Dean's calls and meetings wm:i -~-PrMl- President and Colson ts the f!.rst conversation 
dent). between them after Dean's connrsatlon v.-r:b--
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the President on M:arch 21, 1973. Materials tiona too1t :place on ~.;>r'J 18, 1973 among 11 :07 to 11:23 a.m. •: Meeting betwe-e::l. the 
In the possession of the Committee Indicate t.he Pre~~ldent, .Haldems.n a:J.d Ehrllchma.n: President and Mr. Haldeman. 
that Colson and the President discussed the 12:05 to 12:20 a.m.•: Telephone conver- 12:15 to 12:34 p.m.•: Meeting among the 
Watergate matter in this conversation. Tbw satton between the President and Mr. Ra.lde-- President. Mr. Haldem~n and Mr. Ehrlic=.::an. 
1s also the date. on which It l.s alleged tha\ man. Materials In the possession of the Co:!:.!Ilit­
a. de!lvery at $75,000 for the beneftt of Hunt 3:05 to 3:23 p.m.•: Meeting between the tee re.fiect that on AprU 20, 1973, Pe::.e~n 
was made by LaRue. (United Statelt v. l'resldent and Mr. Ehrllchl:nan. again reported to the Presidl!nt on the prog­
MitcheU, rl al .. Indictment, overt act 43), 6:30 to 8:05 p.m.•: Meeting among the ress of t.he investigation ot the Wate.-gate 

(11) Meeting between the President and President, Mr. Ehrllcbman and Mr. Halde- matters and discussed potentlal c:o:c..ft!~ts of 
Mr. Haldeman on March 22, 1973 from 9:11 man. testimony. Both lmmedlat~y prlor to and 
to 10:35 am.• _ These conversations oecurred the day after subseque-ct to the conversation betwe-e!l the 

Tbl.s meeting is Haldeman's first meeting the President's statement on AprU 17, 1973, President and Petersen, there are c:or::·ersa­
with the President following the $75,000 pay- during which he stated that "there have tlons betTeen the President and Ha.lde:nan. 
ment which allegedly was made in the eve- been major developments ~ the {WI\t-er• with EhrHch.man bei:lt; present at the ;;ecc.ntl 
ning or March 21. It Immediately prececl83 a gate] ca.se." (President's Statement, Aprtl 17, conversation.. 
mornl.ng meeting among Haldeman, EllrUch- 1973, Pres. Doc. 387). During this period, (18) SpecUled conversations on Ap:tl 25, 
man, Mitchell and Dean, at which Dean variou.s White House o!!J.clals were being 1973 among or between the President, ll.tr. 
testl!led that Ehrlich.man asked Mitchell lt summoned to testlty before the Watergate Haldeman. Mr. Ehrllcbman, Mr. Wilson !llld 
Hunt•• money problem had been taken care grand Jury. In addlt.ton. shortly before bl.s Mr. Strickler. 
of and Mitchell replied that lt was no longer conversation With Ehrlich.c:lan, the President Tbe President's record llet forth that the 
a problem. (Dean. 3 sse 1ooo-o1: Ehrllch- had a telephone conversation With Petersen following meetings and telepho~ c:on.ersa­
man. 7 sse 2853). Mit.chell has denied mak- and stated that Dean had told him that the tlons took place among the President, Hal­
ing such a statement. (Mitchell, 4 sse 1650). prosecutors had given immunity to Dean and deman, Ellrll.chman, Wilson and Strickler on 
Tbe second meeting 1s one ot the overt acts the President had a tape to prove this AprU 25, 1973: 
alleged 1n the conspiracy indictment in statement by Dean. Petersen denied that 1m- Approximately 9:25 a.m. to approxlm&tely 
United States v •. Mftchell, rl al., (Indictment, . munlty had been granted. (Petersen, 10:45 a.m.: Meeting among the Preoident, 
overt act 44). Tbe President has stated that 9 sse 3630, 3654-56). ThU was also the date Mr. Wllson a.nd Mr. Strickler. 
he dlrected thl.s second meeting to take place on which the Presldent lee.rned that the ll:o& a.m. to 1:55 p.m.•: lleetlng among 
to determine "the best way to get the whole prosecutors had been told of the break-in the President, Mr. Haldeman IUUl :Mr. 
story out" about the Watergate matter. o! tbe omce o! Daniel Ellsberg's psychlatrlst Ehrllcbman. · 
(President's News Conference, March 6, 1974, by members of the White House Special 4:40 to 5:35 p.m.•: Meeting between the 
Pres. Doc. 293). Investigations Unit. (President's News President and Mr. Haldeman (Mr • .Hart pres-

(12) Telephone conversation between the Conference, August 22, 1973, Pres. Doc. ent from 5:30 to 5:33p.m.) 
President and Mr. COlson on April 12, 1973, 1020). 6:57 to 7:14 p.m.•: Telephone con~­
:trom 7:31 to 7:48p.m. • (16) Specl11ed convel'S:ltlons on AprU 19, tlon between the Pxesldent anc1 Mr. Halde-

Materiats in the possession or the com- 1973, among or betwee!l. t.he President, man. 
mittee indicate that the President called Mr. .Haldeman, Mr. Petersen and Mr. 7:17 to 7:19 p.m.•: Telephone connrsa-
COlson in BOston on AprU 12, said tha.t he ·Ehrlichman.. tlon between the President and Mr. Ehr-
wanted to ac~ promptly on Watergate and Tbe President's records set tortb that the Uchma.n.. 
asked COlson to prepare a specl.tlc set ot folloWing meeting and telephone conversa- 7:25 to 7:39 p.m.•: Telephone convers!l­
recommendatlona. Tbt.s conversation 1B the tlons took place on AprU 19. 1973, among the tion between the Preslden~ and Mr. 
last contact between COlson a.nd the Prest- President, Haldeman, Ehrllchman and Ehrllchm.a!l. 
dent prior to two meetings whlch COlson hac1 Petersen: 7:46 to 7:53 p.m. •: Telephone conn!!'­
With Ehrlichman on AprU 13, 1973 as part 9:31 to 10:12 a.m.•: Meeting among the satton betoreen the President and Mr. 
ot Ehrllchman's inquiry, dlrected by the President, Mr. Haldeman and Mr. Ehrllch- Haldeman. 
President, into t.he Watergate matter. man. On tbe morning or Aprn 25, a!ter Qetl.lt­
Ehrllchman bas tesWI.ed that, at Colson'S 10:12 to 11:07 a.m.•: Meeting between the J.ngbytelephonewtthPeterseJ;J. t.hePres!dent 
request, they met and COlson told h1m that President and :Mr. Peterse:1. met with W11son.. and Strickler, the attor­
Hunt, on AprU 16, would testify to the grand 1 :o3 to 1 :SO p.m. •: Meeting between the neys for Haldeman and Ehrllcbman, and then 
Jury about the payments to the Watergate President and Mr. Ehrllc!unan. bad a leng:by meeting With Haldeman and 
defendants and that McCord would testify Ehrllcbman. Secret Service records tnd!cate 
about an attempt to break into the otllces ot 5 :15 to 5 :45 p.m.•: Meeting between the that at approxtmately the tlme tbl.s later 
Henry Greenspun, a. Las Vegaa newspaper President and Mr. Ehrllchman. meeting ended, Stephen Bull, a Presidential 
publisher. Colson, according to Ehrllchman, 9:37 to 9:53 p.m.•: Telephone conversation assistant, signed out 22 tapes of President'.lll 
said that he bad some suggestiona to convey between the President· and Mr . .Haldeman. conversations. (Exhibit 7, In Re SDT, Mlsc. 
to the President. (Ehrllcbman, 7 sse 2600- 10:54 to 11:04 p.m.•: Telephone conversa- -!7-'13). :B'>lll has testl.tled tl;lat he t=ed 
01; Ehrllchma.n's notes ot this meeting, tlon between the President and Mr. Ehrllch- ovf!r these tapes to Haldeman. (Bull, 111 r~ 
Exblbit 98, 7 sse 2933-36). ma.n. SDT, Tr. 343-45.) Haldeman baa testUled that 

(13) Two telephone conversations between In his meeting on Aprll19, 1973, the Prest- he Ustened to the tape of the March 21, 
1\lr. Ehrllchman aJ:.d !.lr. Gray on .AprU 15, dent and Petersen spoke about the Water- 1973 c:onve!"Sations between the President and 
1973 between 10:16 and 11:15 p.m. . gate investigation. Petersen gave the Prest- Dean. (Haldeman, In Be SDT, !.fis<i.. -!7-73. 

Ehrlichman baa testified that whllo he wu dent a report on tbe progress of the investl- Tr. 927, 937-38.) Tbe President has stated 
1n the presence of the President he, at the gation. Tbe President met With Ehrlicb.m.An that Haldeman listened to tbl.s tape at the 
President's request, telephoned Qray with and Haldeman both Immediately prior to the request of the President. (President's State­
respect to the documents that had been meetitlg With Petersen and subsequent to ment, November 12, 1973, Pres. Doc. 1329.) 
taken from Hunt's White Rouse sate shortly that meeting. Moore bas testl.tled t.hat on Also on April 25, Petersen and Kleindienst 
after the Watergate break-in and given to AprU 19 he told the President that :oe.an asked the President to change h.l.!l dectston 
Gray. Durin~ these con-.ersation.s, Gray tn- had sald that Ebrllchma.n would have a not to send the lntormation about t!le 
foriJ:.ed Eh.rllchman that he had destroyed problem involving the Ell.sberg case. (Moore, Fle!dlng break-In to Judge Byrne in t!le 
the documents and Ehrlichman transm.ltted 5 sse 1961). Dean. on thts date, t.ssued a El"Uberg tr:la.l. Tbe President dld change h.l.!l 
this lntormation lmmedlately to the Prest- public statement that he would not be made declston. (Kleindienst. 9 sse 357-t-75; Pe~!'­
dent. (Ehrllchman, 7 sse 2675-76). Gray ha.s "a. scapegoat" in response to the President's sen, 9 sse 3631-32: t.he President's 6tate­
confumed that Ehrlich.man made ~ese two AprU 17 statement againSt granting tmmu- men~ August 15, 1973; Pres. Doc. 993; ~­
telephon_e c_al!S. (Gray, 9 SSC 3470). ----nity to blgh White Hoase alctes (Dean, 3 _dents Ne>n~ Conference, -Au~ 22, 1!73, 

(14) Telephone con>ersation on April 17, sse 1020). In the evening from 8:26 to 9:32 Prn9~~~1!;nversatlons on AprU 2e. 
1973, between the President and Mr. Dean p.m. the President had hl.s first meeting 1973 among or between the President, ~!r. 
from 9:19 to 9:25a.m. with John Wilson and Fra!lk Strickler, t.be .Haldeman a.:Jd Mr. Ehrl!chman. 

On AprU 17, 1973, the President bac1 a tete- attorneys who were retal::!ed to represent The President's records set !orth that t!le 
phone co::~versat1on with John Dean. Dean Haldema!l and Ehrllchma:l 1!1 the Watergate following meetings and telephone con~~-
has testl.!ied that during this conversation matter. The President has produced an edited t1 t k 1 A 
the President stated that be had decided transcript or tha.t conversation. Immediately sa ons 00 P ace on prU 26. 1973, at::c::!:; the President. Haldeman. and Ehrllcbm~ · 
not to request any reslgna.t!ons untll after therea!tel', the President spoke by telepho.ne 8:55 to 10:24 a.m.•: Meeting between t:!J.e 
the grand jury took action and that he wlth Haldeman and then with E!l.rllchman. President a::.d Mr. Ha.!deman. 
would lssue a statement ve.ry shortly. (Dean, (17) Specified conversations on April 20, 3:59 to 9:03 p.m.•: Meet!ng between ~he 
3 sse 1019). 19'13 among or between the Presideat, Mr. President B.:ld Mr. Haldeman. (Mr. Ebr:.:cll-

(15) Specltied conversations on AprU 18, Haldeman and :r..rr. Ehrllch!:naMl. man wa.s prt>.>ent from 5:57 to 7 :14p.m.) . 
1973 among or between the President, Mr. Tbe President's records set forth that the According to Secret Service logs, on 
Haldeman and :Mr. Ehrlichman. following meetings and telephone con versa- AprU 26, Bull took out a serles o! Preslden~ 

Tbe President's records set forth that the ttons took place on AprU 20, 1973 involving tapes whleh were returned on May 2, 19-73. 
!allowing -meeting and telephone con versa- the President, .Haldeman and EhrUchmsn: (Emibtt 7, ln. Re SDT. Misc. -!7-73). ~ 
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man listened to the tape of March 21, 19i3, 
again at th& Pre&ldent's request. (Haldeman, 
In Re SDT, Tr. 937). A lengthy ftve hour and 
tour mU1ute meeting was held between th& 
President &nd Haldeman at wbJch Ehrlich· 
man v•as present !or one hour and seventeen 
minutes. During this meeting, the President 
called Kleindienst !our times {having called 
him twice ear!!er in the day) and Petersen 
twice. Petersen bas testlfl.ed tha.t on this date 
the President called him to a.sk l.f Gray 
should resign as Acting FBI Director. Gray 
had acknowled&ed that he had destroyed 
documents gl>en to blm by Dea!l l!l June 
1972 from Hunt's "White House safe. Petersen 
also testtfl.ed that pursuant to the President's 
instructions, be asked Gray to meet with 
Kleindle0.3t and him to discuss the situa­
tion. (Petersen, 9 SSC 3625). During the 
course of this meeting in Kleindienst's omce, 
a te}epbone call was made to the President 
and the President was advised that Gray d.id 
not v.ish to resign. The President responded 
that Gray could remain as Acting FBI Dl· 
rector untU the situation was analyzed. 
(Gray, 9 SSC 3591-92; Petersen, 9 SSC 3654; 
Kleindienst, 9 sse 3598-99 >. 

(20) Telephone conversations on June 4, 
1973 between tbe President and :Mr. Halde· 
man from 10:05 to 10:20 p.m.• a!ld !rom 
10:21 to 10:22 p.m.• 

The President ba.5 stated that on June 4. 
1973, he llstene<i to tapes of his varloua con· 
versations with Dea.n. {President's Statement, 
No;ember 12, 1973, Pres. Doc. 1329). Halde­
mo.n had previously listened to tapes at the 
President's request. Material in the posses­
sion of tlie COmmittee indicates the Ukell· 
hood of the President speaking to Haldeman 
&bout certain o! tbB recorded conversations. 

• • • • • 
In calling !or the above oonversatlon&, the 

Committee 18 seeking to determine: 
Whether any o! the conversations 1n. a.ny 

v;ay bear upon the knowledge or lack of 
knowledge o!, or action or inaction by the 
President a.ndtor &ny of his senior a.dm.lnis· 
tratlon o1'!1cla18 wltll respect to, the 1n.vesti· 
gatlon of the Watergate break·1n. by the 
Department of Justice, the Senate 5elect 
Committee, or any other legislative, Judicial, 
executive or adinl.:llstra.tive body, including 
members of.the 'White House .statf; 

Whether &ny o! t.be conversations in any 
way bear upon the President's knowledge or 
lack of knowledge o!, or participation or l&elt 
of participation 1n. the a.cts of obstruction o! 
justice and conspiracy charged or otherwise 
referred to in tile 1n.dictments returned on 
Marcil 1 in the District Court tor the District 
o! Columbia 1n. the caoe or United State& t•. 
Mttclr.ell, et al., aad 

Whether any o! the conversations in any 
way bear upon tile President's knowledge or 
lack or knowledge o!, or participation or lack 
ot participation in, the acts charged or other­
v.·tse referred to 1n. the informations or in· 
dictments returned 1n the DL:itrtct Court !or 
the District o! Colm:nbia.in the C2.Se'O! United 
State& 'II. Magruder; United States t'. Dean; 
United State& v. Clr.apfn; and United State& 
11. Ehrllclr.man, et al~ or any other acts ~·hlch 
may constitute Uleg&l activities. 

(Copy] 
By Authority o! the House of RepreS4!ntat.h:es 

of the Congress of the United States of 
America 
To Benjamin ~!a:-shall, or his duly author­

Ized representat1 ~e: 
You are hereby commanded t.o su.:::unon 

Richard ~r. ~'!:ton. President of the United 
St:1tes of Americ~. or any subordinate ot:icer. 
o!llclal or employee ~·ith custody or control 
of the things described in the attached scbed· 
ule, to be and appear before the Committee 
on the Judiciary of the Rouse of Repre­
sentatives of the United States, of which the 
Hon. Peter W. Rodino, Jr. Is chairman. and to 
bring with blm the thlngs speclAed tn the 
schedule att:lched llereto and made a p&.rt 

hereof,ln their chamber in the clty o! Was!l.· directors, o!fice:s. or employees; (b) litigation 
1ngton. on or betore Ju!y 2. 1974, at the hour or a.dm1nlst.rati>e innstlgaUona or proceed· 
o! 10:00 A.M., then ar;d there to produce and tugs, actual or propo.sed, against or orllerwlse 
deU\·er said things to sald Committee, or respecting said corporation. or a.n:r liUbsl<ti· 
their duly authorized representative, in con· ary, director, ofti.cer or employee the..-eo!; (c) 
nection with the Committee's lnvestigatlon the nomination o! Richard G. Kleindienst to 
authorized and directed by lL Bell. 803, be Attorney General or any proposal. sugge&· 
adopted February 6, 1974. tlon or consldera.tlon o! 10hether to ·•;tth· 

Herein fail not, and make return of this draw ~d nomlna.~n: or (d) the hearings 
summons. before the Seoa.te Jud.iclary Com..c.ittee on 

Witness my h:l.nd anc! the seal of the Ho".l58 tile nomination of Rlchud G. Ble!..!ldienst 
o! Representath·es o! the United State!!', at to be Attorney General, includ.ing the '1:~stt­
tlle city o! Washington, this 24th day o! mons giveu during such hearings. 
Ju:.e. 1974. Memorandum Setting Forth Facts cd Bases 

Peter W. Rod1no, Jr .• Chairman. Underlying Pro.,osed Subpoena !or Record· 
Attest: W. Pat JenningS, Clerk. ings of Presldentlal Conversattoru and 
On behalt·of Richard ::\1. NiXon, Presidem OUler Thlng5 Necessary !or the C<lmmlt· 

of the United States of America. I accept tee's Inquiry Relating to ITT and the 
semce of the original subpoena, of ~·hich the Ble1ndtemt Co~tion Hearings 
foregoing ts a copy. The following set's forth the facts and 

Dated: June 25, 197~. bases de 1 in th 
Recei~ed: James D. St. Cllllr. un r r g e proposed subpoena 
Special counsel to the President. dated .Tune 24, 1974 !or recordings or Pres!· 

dentlal conversation& &nd other things nee-
Schedule o! Tll1ngs Required To Be Produced esa.ry far the House JudiclarT Committee's 

Pursuant to Subpoena of the Co=ittee inquiry into the rrr case and the hearings 
on the Judiciary before the ~nate Ju<11clary Committee on 
A. All tapes, dictabelts, other electiUlllc the nomination of Richard G. Kleindienst 

and mechanical recordings, t.Ta.nscrtpts. to be Attorney General. 
memoranda, note& and other writings and In 1969, three antitrust suits were ~ed by 
things relating to the following con>ersa· the Un!ted States against the Intema.tlonal 
Uons: Telephone and Telegraph Corporation (ITT), 

1. COnversations .of the President With Mr • each seeking to prevent a corporate acqutsi· 
Haldeman and :Mr. Ehrllchm.S.n, or either tlon or to require a corporate dl;e;titure. 
o! them, between a.!Jout 12:30 p.m. e.nd &bou~ During 1970 and 1971, particularly 1n August 
1:28 p.m., and between about 5:15p.m. and o! the former :rear and Aprll of tl:.e !atter, 
about 6:32p.m., March 6, 1972. ol'!lclals of rrr ma.de numerous eontacu with 

2. Conversations between the President Admlnlstration oftl.clals !or the pu...,ose ot 
and Mr. Haldeman !rom about 1:40 p.m. to attempting to persuade the Admlnts~tlon 
about 2:13p.m., liarch 6, 1972. that the suits shOUld be settled on a basis 

3. Telephone conversation between the const.s+..ent with the interests o! rrr. roocu­
President and Mr. Colson !rom about 7:36 ments supplled to the Committee bT the 
p.m. to about 8:02p.m., March 6, 1972. White House; Memo c. W. COlson to H. R. 

4. Telephone conver..a.tlon between the Haldeman, March 20, 1972, Senate S~lect 
President and Mr. Mitchell begl.nc!ng about Committee (SSC) Exhibit 121, 8 SSC 3372.) 
6:05p.m., March 14, 1972. Late in December 1970 ITT in th 

5. conversation between the President • • won e 
&nd Mr. Colson from &bout 1 :24 p.m. to District Court one of the three suits, brought 
&bout 3 :40 p.m .• March 18, 1972. :rlncor~ecteolon wt~h its acqulsltion o! the 

6. Con;ersat!ons between the Pre£iden! ne rparatton. The once-pos~oned 
deadllr.e !or the United States to 1tle Its 

and Mr. Haldeman on }.!arch 30, 1972, from appeal in the United Sta~ Supreme Court 
&bout 9:38 a.m. to about 9:58 a.m~ about 1n tlle ITT-Grinnell C2.Se WtLS April 20. 1971. 
10:42 a .m. to aoout 11:10 a.m.; 6bout 11 :50 (Petltlon of Go>emment filed in su ... reme 
a.m. to about 12:15 p.m.; and about 5:32 .. 
p.m. to about 6 :OS p.m. Court on March 19, 1971, and granud by 

7. !wy conversation o! the President With :ll.lr. J=ice Harlan on Marcb 20. 1971.1 
Mr. Haldeman and Mr. Colson, or either o! On Aprll 19. 1971, the President. in the 
them. between about 12:46 p.m. and a.bout co~ of a meeting with John D. Ehrlich· 
2:32 p.m.,:!llarch 30, 1972. man and George P. Shultz, telephoned 

8. Jwy converss.tlon of the President with Deputy Attorney General Kleindienst and 
Mr. Haldeman and Mr. Colson, Ol' either o! ordered that the appeal not be 1Ued. The 
them. between about 5:32 p.m. and &bout Preslde:::.t has sa!d that he took this ectlon 

Mar 30 1gft2 beca\tse Jn his opinion the !urther p::-osecu-
6:11 p.m., ch • • · tlon b:r -~l!tatlt Attorney General Richard 

9. Telephone conversation between the J.fc:Le.ren of the suit was Inconsistent with 
President and Mr. Colson between about 7:33 the the antitrust policy approved by the 
p.m. and about 7:45 p.m., March 30, 1972. President In consultation with hiS sen!or eco-

10. COnversations between the President nomic advisers. D!Iring the meet!zl6. the 
and Mr. Haldeman tro:n about 9:44 a.m. to President expresse<t irritation wtr.h 1\.tc­
a.bout 10:06 a.m.; about 10:48 a .m. to a!xmt Laren·s failure to follow admlnlS!ratlon 
11 :45 a.m.: &bout 2 :45 p.m. to about 3 :00 policy. '~"hlte House "White Paper.'' The ITT 
p.m.; and 6:03 p.m. to about 6 :18 :p.m.. A'llt1·Tr.lst Decirlon. January 8, 1974. p. 5.) 
April 4, 1972. On the following day, the Soltcltor ~neral·a 

11. Telephone conversation between the omce obtained from the Supreme Court an 
President .and~ Co.lscm......betwee:n .abou.r._exten.sl.G:n. o! tile .tJ.me_1n. -Whk:h to-tile the 
10:46 a.m. and about 11:09 a.m .• April 4, ITT-Grinnell .appeal. (White House ~White 
1&72. Paper," mpra, p. 5; Griswold testt:!lony. 

12. Com·ersation between the Pre~!de!lt and Klelndiens~ Confirtn:ltlon Hearings IKCHI 
Mr. Colson between about 11 :45 a.m. and 2 KCH 389; Appllclitlon for Extens!on o! 
12 :23 p.m., April 5, 19i2. Time 'f.!ed 1n the Supreme Court.) 

B. The President's copies of da!!y ne":s On .4-prll 21, 1971. the President lllE't v•lth 
summ:lrles (&nd all his notes and memo· Attorney General Mitchell. The .4-tt.,rne:r 
=.da.~ith respect thereto) which were com· Gene!lll sa!d tha! ln hiS opinion It "'as inad· 
piled by White House sta!!' members durlr.g V'...ab:e :cr the P!esldent to order no r.p:peal 
the period February ~2. 1972 tbroush J;;.ne 9. In the Grinneil C:l&', that there wo:Ld be 
1972, 1nc!us1ve, suml!la.rlzlng ne7\3 repc!"ts ad;e~ repercusslo:J.S 1n Congress, anc! that 
by newspapers, periodicals, wire se:-."!~s. s.nd Sollct:c!' General Griswold might resig-n. The 
the bro~.d-::a.st med.ia, to t!le extent tbe.t ~:ucb Preside::..!: ~~Gt"ee<i to follow the Attorney Gen· 
ne~-s summaries relate, directly or l!ldlrect~y. era.l's a.d>1ce. (Wblte House "Whtte Pe.per," 
to any of the follo\\1ng subjects: (&) the n:pra. p. 5.) 
!::.temaitona.l Te.:~pho~ and Teolegrapb C«· Somet1:ne du.rbg the sprl.'lg of 19':'!. ITr· 
pora~lo:1 (ITT) or a:::y o~ ita su.bszd!arie&. Sh~ton. a.::. ITI sub:sle!iary. made :1 p!Kg& 
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too the San Diego Convention and Visitors 
Bureau 1n support of a bid by th& City of 
san Diego to attract th& 1972 Republican Na­
tional Convention. (Whlte House "White 
Paper," supra, p. 7.) Evidence Indicates that 
sometime 1n May or June of 1971, Attorney 
General Mitchell became awa.r& of the 
pledge. (Documents supplied to the Com­
mittee by the White House; Memo c. W. Col­
son to H. R.. Haldeman, March 30, 1972, SSC 
Exhtbit 121, 8 sse 3372.) 

During June, 1971, the Antltru$t Division 
o! the Justice Department decided to try to 
settle the three rrr antitrust cnses. (Mc­
Laren. 2 KCH 111-112.) The final settlement 
was announced on July 31, 1971. (McLaren, 
2 KCH 113.) several authorities have stated , 
that the settlement, calllng for the largest 
jlntitrust-related corporate divestiture 1n 
history, was a good one from the govern­
ment's standpoint. (See, e.g., Griswold, 
2 KCH 374.) It. did, however, enable rrr to 
retain tts Hartford Fire Insurance subsldl­
ary, a matter ot paramount importance to 
the company. 

On February 15, 1972, the nomination or 
Richard o. Kleindienst to become Attorney 
General was forwarded by the f:>re&Ident to 
the Senate for confirmation. (Weekly Com­
pUation of Presidential Documents, Vol. 8, 
p. 440.) Mr. Kleindienst was to replace John 
Mitchell, who was leaving the Justice De· 
partment to head the Committee for the 
Reelection ot the President. The Senate Ju­
diciary Committee held hearings on thls 
nomlna.t10n and quickly agreed to recommend 
con1irma.t10n to the Senate. (Report ot the 
Senate Judiciary Committee on the Nomina­
tion of Rlcba.rd 0. KletncUenst, 92d cong .. 
2d 5ess., Executive Rep. No. 92-19, February 
29, 1972.) 

Before the Senate could act, however, be­
ginning on February 29, 1972, a series of 
three articles by Jack Anderson was published 
alleging a llnk between the I'IT-5heraton 
pledge a.nct· the antitrust settlements a.nd 
purporting to Involve Messrs. Mitchell and 
Kleindienst. (2 KCH 461-465.) Mr. Klein­
dienst immediately asked that the Senate 
Judiciary Committee hea.rlngs be reopened 
so that he could respond to the charges. (2 
KCH 95.) 

At about the same time, the Securities 
and Exchange Commission (SEC) dema.nded 
that I'IT turn over to it documents bel1eved. 
by the SEC to be 1n the files ot ITT"s Wash­
Ington, D.C. otllce. The documents Included. 
several which re!iected. I'IT contacts with the 
Admlnlstratlon ln 1970 a.nd. 1971 1n connec­
tion with attempts to settle the a.ntltru.st 
cases. On March 2, 1972, the first day of the 
resumed Klelndlenst nom1na.t10n hear:tngs, 
attorneys :tor rrr turned copies or one or 
more o! these documents over to White 
House aide Wallace Johnson. Th& following 
week, others or these documents were also 
furnished to Johnson. Later, during March 
or AprU, coplcs of the documents were pro­
vided by I'IT to the SEC. 

During the course ot the hearings, Mr. 
Kleindienst on se;eral occasions dented hav­
ing ever received a.ny instructions from the 
White House with respect to a.ntitrust sutts. 
(2 KCH 15'7; 2 KCH 191; 2 KC'R' 353.) On 
Frlday, March S, 1972, Senator Kennedy asked. 
Mr. Kielnd1enst.a.bout the extension ot time 
to appeal the GrtnnelZ case which had re­
sulted from the President's AprU 19, 1971 
telephone call to hlm. Mr. Kleindienst re­
sponded: 

"Senator Kennedy, I do not recollect why 
that extension was asked." (2 KCH 204.) 

The following Tuesday, March 7, 1972, Mr. 
Kleindienst, in a prepared statement, de­
::cribed the circumstances surrounding the 
request for an extension, omitting a.ny rcen-

't!on of the President's order to drop the case. 
(2 KCH 249-250.) 

On March 14 and March 15, 1972. John 
Mitchell appeared before the Senu.te Jucllci-

ary Committee. He testl!!ed that there had certain conversations during the ~~!od be­
been no communication between the Pres!- tween February 29 and AprU 5, 197:.!. to aid 
dent and hlm with respect to the I'IT Rnti· in determining the partlclpatlnn c.!' non­
trust litigation or any other antitrust lit lga- partlcipatl:m, know!e:!ge or lack o~ knowl­
tion. (2 KCH 552; 2 KCH 571.) edge o! the :President and his sen!or ad•tsors 

In early .Mo.rch, a White House ta;.k !o;:ce, with re!<pe~t to testimony J::e!ore the Senate 
including Messrs. Ehrllchman, Colson, Field- in the KlelncUenst hearings. 
ing, Johnson, Mardlan and others, was esta.b- Tt.e speclt\e con;ersatlons referred to in 
llshed to keep track of the Kleindienst heru-- Part A of the schedule attached to the pro­
tngs, and its a.ctlvitles continued throughout posed subpoena are as follows: 
the month. Members of the task force met A. Items 1, 2 a:::td 3 of Part A .-e!er to 
from time to time with :\Iessrs. Mitchell and con;ersatlons between the PresiC:e:J.t and 
Kleindienst. Mr. Fielding was gtven the re- Messrs. Haldeman. Ehrllchman or c::son on 
sponsibUlty or reviewing White House file;; to hiondz.::;-, March 6, 1972. Thl.s "·as the day 
collect all documents which· related to rrr. aft-er the President returned. from a. voeekend 

On March 24. 1972, the President he:d hls at Ke:;- B!scayne, and four days aft'!~ the rrr 
only press conference during this period. He document or documents had been d~ll'>ered 
said that: M • •• as far e.s the (Senate Judie!- to Whit& House aide Johnson. 'n:.e Kletn­
ary Committee] hea.rlngs are concerned, there dlens! · hearings h~d resumed the p;evious 
l.s nothing that has happened ln the hearings Thursday and were conttnulng. On t:Ce same 
to date that has tn one way shaken my con- day Mr. Ehrllchman contacted the Cha!rmau 
fidence in Mr. Kle.lndlenst as a.n able, hone;;t of the SEC to discuss I'IT documents. 
man. fully quall!ied to be Attorney General B. On the evening of March 14. 1972, the 
ot the United States." (Weekly CompUatlon Preslclent a.nd Mr. :Mitchell bad a telephone 
of PresidentlaJ Documents, Vol. 8, No. 8, pp. con'>e:-satlon. It v:as their only phone cvnver-
673-674.) satlon durtng the month ot March o: whtch 

He also said that, "In this Administration we are aware. Th1s was the evenil::g oC the 
we moved on I'IT. We are proud of that rec- first da:r of Mr. ?.Utcbell's testimony during 
ord." He satd that admlnlstratlon action had which he twice dented ever having cU.scussed 
prevented rrr from growing further and antltru..-t lltlgatton with the Presicle:J.t. Ma.­
quoted Sollcitor General Griswold as to the terials respecting the conversatio:l are re­
excellence of the ITI' settlement. "We mo•ed ques~ed 1n Item 4 o! Part A of the scbedule 
on [ITI'] a.nd moved etrectively ••• Mr. attached to the proposed subpoena. 
McLaren Is ju::ttfiably very proud ot that C. According to :Mr. Colson's cale:ldar, he 
re::orcl ••• (a.nd. be) should be." (Ia. at p. spent the morning of March 18, 19i2, on 
67:>.) "I'IT" matters. He had three te1epho!le con-

On the morning of March 30, 1972, Messrs. versat:ons with Mr. Mitchell durt:lg the 
Colson, Haldeman a.nd MacGregor met. That morning. That afternoon, the President and 
afternoon. Mr. Colson sent a memorandum Mr. Colson met O'>er two hours. The Klein­
to Mr. Haldeman !ncUcatlng hls dtsagreement dlenst hearings were stlll continuing. Item 5 
with Mr. Haldeman's View, apparently pre- of Part A o{ the schedule attached to the pro­
sented at a meeting that morning, that the posed subpoena. co•ers th1s conversstl.o!l. 
White House shoUld continue to support :Mr. D. In a memorandtun from Mr. Colson to 
Kleindienst's nominatiOn. His reasons in- :Mr. Haldeman dated March 30, 1972 (Ex­
cluded the possibutty that documents would hiblt 121, 8 SSC 3372), Colson indicated that 
be revesled suggesting that the President the subjects or discussion among sen10r 
wae Involved in the ITI' situation in 1971 White House aides on that date ..-e:-e the 
and contradicting statements made by Mr. Klelnd!.enst hearings, the possibutty o! with­
Mitchell under oath. (SSC Exhibit 121, 8 sse drawing his nomination, documents rel3.tlng 
3372.) to the Sena.t_e .Judlc1ary Committee hea.rtngs, 

On Aprll 4, 1972, John Mitchell returned to and testimony by :Mr. :r.ntchell be!o::e the 
h Committee. The President met With Mr. 

Is omce after about two weeks tn Florida. Haldeman a.nd Mr. Colson on March 30. Hal-. 
(Mitchell logs.) That afternoon, be met with , 
the President and :Mr. Haldeman at the Whit& deman during the courSe or two of his meet­
House and, according to Mr. Haldeman's lngs With the President on March 30 talked 
testimony before the Senate Select Commit- by telephone with Kleindienst. Items a, 7, 
t th d1s 8 and 9 of Part A of the schedule attached to 
ee, . ey cussed the Kleindienst bearings. the proposed subpoena request mate:ials re-

('7 sse 2881.) The Committee bas recei>ed 
trom the President a.n edited transcript of spectlng the March 30 con•ersatlons tnvolv-
tbe tape ot thls meettng. lng the President, Haldeman and ,Colson. 

On April 19, 1972, Ed Reinecke, Lt. Gover- E. On AprU 4 and 5, 1972, the ~!dent had 
nor or Ca.lltomia, tesWied that he had not con>ersatlons with. Mitchell, Haldeman and 
told the~ Attorney General Mitchell about Colson. At a.bout thls time the Pres:clent ap-

parenUy made the decision not to Withdraw 
the ITI'-8heraton fina.nclaJ pledge untU Sep- the Kleindienst nomination. It.em.s 10. 11 a.nd 
tember, 1971. Clark MacGregor a.nd Mr. 12 of Part A of the schedule attached to the 
MarcUan had met with Mr. Reinecke the 
morning be testified. on April 3, 1974, Mr. proposed subpoena call for materte.!.s relat­
R.einecke 1rnS tncUcted by a Dlstrt~ of tng to t!lese con;ersations. 
Columbia grand jury tor perJury 1n connec- Part B ot the schedule attach'!!d to t!le pro­
tion wtth that testimony. (Indictment, posed subpoena. requests news sw:r~aries 
A ril s 974 u.s submitted to the President during the period 

1
f

5 
• 1 • · '1. Reinecke, crim. No. 74- of the hearings on the nomin3.tton o! Klein-

.) dienst before the Senate Judiciary Cc::nmit-
On Aprtl 27. 1972, the last day ot the hear·.- tee and the debate by the senate-Oll that 

lngs, Mr. Kleindienst referred to hls ee.rl!er nomlna:!on. The summaries are co:npUed 
testtmony about communtcaUons with tne from va.:-icus news media and subm.t':ted to 
White House and said: the President dally. From time to ti!!!e the 

"I tried to make It clear, Senator Fong, President makes 'lrr1tten comments a:J.d nota­
that in View of the posture I put myself in. tions on these ne'I';"S summaries. The Preal­
ln this case. I could have had several con• dent's copies o! thoese su!Illilaries wo:.tld be 
versations but I would have h~d a vivid rec- probatil"~ of the President's knowl~=e or 
ollection 1f someone at th& White House had lack or knowledge of the testimony c!i.'ing. 
called me up and said. 'Look, Kleind1er.st. and e>~:-:ts surro~nding, the bear!::;;-• and 
tl1is Is the way we are going to handle that debates en the Klle::d!enst nomtna~!o::~ . 
case.' People who ·know me, I don't think 
would talk to me that way. but 1f anybody 
di':i lt would be a very sharp impact on my' 
mind because I believe I know how I would 
have responded."' 

No such conversation occurred. (3 KCH 
1682). The committee needs to examine 

(Copy) 
BY Al;THORITY OF TUE HOUSE OF ££PRE• 

SENTATI\"ES OP THE CO!<lGtu:SS O.P 7HE 
UNITED STATES OP ~ERICA 

To BenJamin Manhall. or his duly ao.r:hor­
fted representatl\'e: 
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You are hereby commanded to summon 

Richard M. Nixon, President or t.he United 
States of Amel'"lca, or any subordinate omcer. 
oftlclal or employee with custody or control 
of the things described In the attached 
schedule, to be and appeo.r before the 
Committee on the Judiciary of the House of 
Representatives of the United States, of 
which the Hon. Peter w. Rodino, Jr. is chair­
man; and to bring with him the things 
specllled In the schedule attached hereto and 
made a part hereof, tn their chamber In the 
city of Washington, on or before July 2, 1974, 
at the hour of 10:00 a.m. then and there to 
produce and deliver said things to said Com­
mittee, or their duly authorized representa­
tive, In connection with the Commtttee·s 
investigation authorized and directed by H. 
Res. 803, adopted February 6, 1974. 

Herein faU not, and make return of this 
summons. 

Witness my hand and the seal of the House 
of Representatives of the United States, at 
the city of Washington, this 24th day of 
June,1974. 

Attest: 
PETE& W. RoDINO, Ja., 

Chairman. 
W, PAT JENNINGS, 

Clerk. 
On behalf of Richard :M. Nixon, President 

of the United States of America, I accept 
service of the original subpoena, of which the 
foregoing is a copy. 

Dated: June 25,1974. 
Recelved: James w. st. Clair. 
Speclal COunsel to the Presi<lent. 

Schedu,le of Things Required To Be Produced 
Pursuant to Subpoena of the COmmittee 
on the JucUctacy · 
A. The Presl<lent's <lany diaries (as re-

1lected on U.S. Government Printing omce 
Form "1969-0-332~68" or its successor 
forms) for the period March 19, 1971 to 
March 25, 1971, both lnclusln~. 

B. All tapes, dictabelts, other electronic 
and mechanical recordings, transcripts, 
memoranda, notes and other v;rltlngs and 
things relating to the followl!Jg conversa­
tions: 

1. Between the President and John Ehrlich• 
man on :March 19, 1971 from approximately 
8:30 a.m. to approximately 11:00 a.m.: on 
March 23, 1971, beg1nn1ng at approximately 
12:00 noon and ending at approximately 
1 :D7 p.m.; on March 25, 1971, beginning at 
approximately 8:30 a.m.; and on March 25, 
197_1, beginning at appr_oximately 3:00p.m . . 

2. Between the President-and John B. con­
nally on March 20, 1971; March 22, 1971; and 
on March 23, 1971 from 5:35p.m. to 5:38p.m. 

3. Between the President and Charles w. 
Colson on March 19, 1971; March 21, 1971; 
March 22, 1971 (four conversations); March 
23, 1971; March 24, 1971 (three conversa­
tions); and March 25, 1971. 
Memorandum Setting Forth Facts and Bases 

Underlying Proposed Subpoena for Record­
Ings of Presidential Conversations and 
Other Things Necessary for the Commit­
tee's Inquiry Into the 1971 MUk Price Sup­
port Decision 
The following sets forth -· certain of the 

facts and bases underlying the proposed 
subpoena for materials necessary for the 
Committee's Inquiry Into the President's 
1971 decision to Increase milk price supports. 
The Committee has received additional evi­
dence with respect to this matter tn executive 
session. 

Part A or the schedule attached to the 
proposed subpoena lists: 

The President's dally diaries las reflected 
on U.S. Government Prlntlng omce Form 
"1969-0-332-068" or Its successor forms) for 
the period March 19, 1971, to March 25, 1971, 
both inclusive. 

The President's dally diary Is a log com­
pUed by the Secret Service of the time ·and 
duration of the President's meetings and 

telephone conversations throughout the day. and directed by B. P.cs. S03, adopted Feb­
The dally diaries would enable the Committee ruary 6, 1974. 
to ascertain whether the President met or Herein faU not, and make return of thl~ 
spoke with persons likely to be involved with st:mmons. 
contrlbut!ons by the mllk producer cooper- V\."itness my band and th~ St'S.l o! the Hou:.~· 
atlves during the period when the WMte of P~presentatlves of the UnitM States, ..t 
House was considering whether {o tncrer.se the city of Wa.shtngton, thlS 2-l~c C:ay of 
milk price supports above the level fiXed by June, 1974. 
the Secretary of Agriculture. PETI:!I W. RODINO, Jr., Ci:atrntaJt. 

Part B of the schedule attached to the pro- On behalf of Richard M. Ntxo:J. President 
posed subpoena lists tapes and other things of the United Stat-es of America, I at'cept 
.respecting the ofollowlng spfl{:ified preslden- SP.r\"lce of the original subpoena. or whl~h 
tlal conversattons: the foregoing l.s a copy. 

(1) Between the President and John Ebr- Dated: June 25, 1974. 
llchman on March 19, 1971, from approx- Received JAMES D. ST. C'un!. 
lmately 8:30 a.m. to approximately 11:00 Special Counsel to the Pre.5ldent. 
a.m.; on March 23, 1971, beginning at approx- Schedule of Things Required To Be Produced 
imately 12:00 noon and ending at approx- Pursuant to Subpoena of the Co:mnlttee on 
imately 1:07 p.m.; on March 25, 1971, begin· the Judiciary 
ntng at approXimately 8:30 a.m.: and on All tapes, dlctabelts, other ele<:tronlc and 
lltarch 25, 1971, beglnnlng at approximately mechanical recordings, transcripts. memo-
3:00p.m. randa, notes (lncludlng notes of H. R. Hal de-

As the President's principal advisor on man), and other writings and things relating 
domestic alfalrs, Mr. Ebrllcbman participated to: 
in the White House review of the SecretBQ' (1) A conversation on September 15. 1972. 
ot Agriculture's milk price support decision among the President, H. R. Haldeman and 
and the President's decision to Increase the John Dean between approximately 6:00 and 
milk price support level. approximately 6:13p.m. 

The Committee h!IS receiVed a copy of Mr. 121 A con\"el'"Satlon on September 15. 1972 
Ellrllchman's omce diary which indtcat~s that between the President and H. R. Haldeman 
:Mr. Ehrllchman met with the President at betwcl!n 4:43 and 5:27 p.m. (Rox:.a!d Ziegler 
the ttn1es specified above during the. pertocl v•as present between 4:43 and 4:-!9 p.m.) 
March 19, 1971-March 25, 1971. Memorandum Setting Forth Facts and Bases 

(2) Between the President and John B. Underlying Proposed Subpoena tor Record-
COnnally on ll.larch 22, 1971, and on lllarch 23, lng of Presidential Conversations and 
1971, from 5:35p.m. to 5:38p.m. Other Things Necessary for the Commit-

Beglnnlng In February, 1971, AMPI J"ep- tee's Inquiry Into Alleged Abuse of IRS .... 
resentatlves communicated with Secretary 
of the Treasury connally to urge an Increase 'l'be follo'Wing sets forth the fac:s and bases 
tn IIIilk price supports. Secretary Connally underlying the proposed subpoena dated 
discussed the milk price support J.ssue with June 24. 1974 !or recordings ot Presidential 
the President and participated In the decision eon;ersatlons and other things necessary for 
to increase the mUk price support level. the House Judiciary Committee's inquiry imo 

According to a White House compilation alleged abuse of IRS. 
of meetings and telephonl! calls between the I 1) Conversation on September 15, 1972 
President and COnnally, the President met amo::tg the President, H. R. Haldeman and 
or spoke with connally on the dates and times John Dean, from approximately 6:00 p.m. to 
indicated above. approximately 6 :is p.m.• 

(3) Between the President and Charles W. According to &n a111da.vit of SSC lt!.nority 
C<1lson on March 19, 1971; March 21, 1971; Counsel Fred Thompson, he wa.s Informed 
March 22, 1971 (four conversations); In or about early .June 1973 by J'. Fred 
March 23, 1971: March 24, 1971 (three con- Buzhs.."dt, then Special Counsel to-: the Pres­
versatlons): and M~ch 25, 1971. ldent, that during the Septemher 15. 1972 

As the White Rouse liaison v;tth the milk mee:ing Dean reported to the President on 
producer cooperatives, :Mr. COlson communi- the IRS lnvestlgatlon of Larry O"Brlen. (4 
cated frequently with Al\.lPI representatives SSC 1794-96) 
from 1970 through 1n1 regarding political On May 28, 1974, the Waterga~ Special 
contributions to the President's re-election. ·· Prosecutor mo;ed Judge St.-tea ·fo:- an order 
Mr. Colson met with representatives of the that the recording ot: this portion o! the 
milk producer cooperatives during the pe- conversation of September 15, JQi2.. and the 
rlod the President determined to Increase the notes of Haldeman relating thereto, be 
IIIilk price support level. turned over for presentation to the appro-

According to a White House compUatlon of priate grand lurles, on the basis that the 
meetings and telephone calls between the recording is relevant to alleged \Th!te House 
President and Colson, COlson met or spoke attempts to abuse and polltlclze the IP..S. Ac­
with the President on the dates indicated cording to the supporting a111davit o! Special 
above. Prosecutor Leon Jaworski dated :~.tar 28. 

(Copy) 1974. e\"ldence assembled by his o!!i:e sub­
stant1stes allegations that In Septe:x:.~r 1972 

By Authority o! the House of Representa- the White House presented lists of "enemies"' 
tlves o! the Congress of the United States to the IRS v.-lth the direction tla: they be 
of America audited or otherwise harassed, a~d th:lt In 
To Benlamln Marshall, or bls duly a•.rthor- Augtt.s:. and ~eptember 197:2. the White House 

1zed representative: · ··· unia"l'rtully attempted t<l have the IRS tnves-
You are hereby commanded to summon tlgate Larry O'Brien. At:ter·listent=.g to tile 

Richard 11!. Nixon, President of the United tape o! the September 15, 1972 eon>e:-satlon. 
States of America, or any subordinate omcer, Judge Sirlca orally granted the mo::o:1 or the 
omclal or employee with custody or control Spectal Prosecutor on June 7. 19";"4. On 
of the things described In the attached sched- June 12, 1974, the Court ordered tha: there­
ule, to be and appear before the Committee cording ot the conversation from 6:00 p .m. 
on the Judiciary of the House of Representa- untU approximately 6:13 p.m., and :!le notes 
tives of the United States, of which the Hon. 
Peter W. Rodino. Jr. Is chairman. and to brinri 
with him the things specltl.ed In the sched-:.rle 
attached hereto and made a pan hereo!, In 
their chamber In the city of WaoMngton, pu 
or before July 2, 1971, at the hour or 10:00 
A.M. then imd there t<l produce and deliver 
said things to said Committee, or t-heir duly 
authoY"IzeCI representative, In connection with 
the Committee's investigation authorized 

1 The Committee has In Its pcs..<ession a 
tape of that portion of the Sep!e:::.ber 15, 
1972 ccn•·ersatlon among the Pres:::~ ::::. llal­
deman and Dean whlch took plaC!! between 
5:27p.m. and approximately 6 :00 p..:n .. It lllso 
hM I:! Its possession a tv.pe of a po!'tton of 
a conversation between the Presld;-nt and 
Halde::t:an on September 15, 1&72 !:-om r.p­
proxtm:.t-ely 5:12 p.m. to 5:27p.m. 
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taken during that oon'"er.;atlon by R. R. 
Haldeman, be made avaUable to the Special 
Prosecutor. The President, through hl.s coun­
sel. filed a notice of appeal of that order on 
J'une lol, 1974. 

Dellon has testified before the sse that 
during the meeting on September 15, 1972, 
with the President and Haldeman, they d1.1-
cusse<1 u.sl.ng the IRS to attack their ene­
mies. According to Dean's testimony, the 
President said that Democratic administra­
tions used the IRS ln the past and that 
after the election they would get people who 
would be responst-;-e to Wlllte House re­
quirements. Dean testified that a.t that point 
In the dlscussloll Ha.ldeman sta.rted taltlng 
notes. (3 sse 958; 4 sse 147~. 1535) Ha.l­
deman testlfled that there was discussion 
~bout the Democratic orientation at the 
ms and the reluctance of the IRS to follow 
up on complaints at possible vlola.tlons 
agalllst people who were supporting oppon­
tnte at the White House, a.nd of cleaning 
house after the election. (7 sse 2889) 

In addition, other materi!W presented to 
the Committee In Executive Session further 
support the relevance or the recording of 
th1lil conversation to the Committee's in­
qUirY. 

(2) Conversation on September liS, 1972, 
betliVeen the President and H. R. Haldeman 
between 4:43 and 5:27p.m. (Ronald Ziegler 
was present between 4:43 and 4:49 p.m.) 

On September 15, 1972 the Indictment of 
tlle se-;-en defendants in United State8 v. 
Liddy, cha.rglng violations with respect to the 
brea.k-in at the Democratic National Com­
mittee headquarters wa.s announced. The 
House JudiCiary Committ~ ha.s previously 
obtained a tape recording of the portion at 
thl.9 conversation from approximately 5:12 
to 5:27p.m. Th1s portion of the conversation 
relates to the use of the Internal Revenue 
Service. 

By Authority o? the House of Representa­
tives ot the Congress ot the United States 
at America . 
To Benjainln Marshall, or hls duly author­

ized representative: 
You are hereby commanded to summon 

RichArd M. Nixon, President of the United 
States of America, or any subordinate of• 
1!.eer, oflldal, or employee wl.th custody or 
control of the things described in the at­
tached schedule, to be and appear before 
the Committee on the Judiciary of the House 
of Representatives of the United States. of 
which the Hon. Peter W. Rodino, Jr; 1s chair­
man. and to bring with h1m the things specl­
fled in the schedule attached hereto and 
made a part hereof, l:l their chamber in the 
clty of Wa.shington, on or before J'uly 2, 
1974. at the hour of 10:00 A.M. then a.n4 
there produce a.n4 dellver said thlngs to 
said Committee, or their duly authorized 
representative, 1n connection with the Com­
mittee's Investigation authorized and di­
rected by R. Rea. 803, adopted February 8, 
1974. 

Herein !aU not, and make return o~ thlll 
s;ummons. 

Wltness my hand and the sea.l of the House 
of Representatives ot the United States, at 
tlle city of Wa.shlngton, thls 24th day of 
J'une, 1974. 

l>E= W. RoDINO, Jr,. 
Cha~rman. 

Attest: W. Pat Jennings, Clerk. 
On behalf of Richard M. Nixon, President 

of the United States ot America, I accept serv­
Ice of the original subpoena, of which the 
foregoing ls a copy. 

Dated: June25, 1974. 
JAMES D. ST. CLAIR, 

Special counsel to the President. 
Schedule of Thtngs Required To :Be Produced 

Pursuant to Subpoena of the Judiclary 
A. AU ta;:es, dlctabelts. other electronic 

_ and mechanical recordtngs, transcripts, 

• .~ 1. 

··-· 

memom:::~.:!~. notes &nd otber wr1t1ngs and 
things relsttns to the following conversa­
tions: 

1. Meeting among the President, ChArles 
Colson and H. R. Haldeman on June 23, 1971. 
between 11:39 a.m. to 12:41 p.m. 

2. Meeting . between the President and 
Charles Colson on June 28, 1971 between 
6:50 and 7:25p.m. 

3. Meeting among the President, Charles 
Colson and R. R.. Haldeman on July 1, 1971 
between 10:28 and 11:49 a.m. (John Ebrllch­
man was present between 10:58 and 11:49 
1\.m. and ?.enry Klssin~;er wca present be­
tween 11:22 and 11:24 a.m.) 

!!.. Meetings between the President and· 
John Ehrl1chman on September 7, 1971 be­
tween 8 :33 and 10:35 a.m.; on September 8, 
1971 between 3:26 and 5:10 p.m.; and on 
S;:pte:nber 10, 1971 between 3:03 and 3:51 
p.m. 

5. 1\Ieetl..tlg among the President. B. R.. 
Haldeman and Charles Colson on Septem­
ber 7, 1971 between 10:37 a.m. and 12:00 p.m. 
and telephone conversation between the 
President and Charles Colson on Septem­
ber 10, 1971 between 3:53 and 4:17 p.m. 

8. Meeting between the President and 
Henry Petersen on AprU 19, 1973 between 
10:12 and 11:07 a.m. 

7. Meeting between the President and 
Richard Kleindienst on April 25, 1973. 

B. All memoranda, correspondence, papers 
and things prepared by, sent to, received by, 
or at any time contained 1n, the flies at 
Charles Colson, R. R. Haldeman, John 
Ehrllcb.man, l!:gll Krogh and David Young, 
to the extent that such memoranda, corre­
spondence, papers and things relate or refer 
directly or Indirectly to the origin or to the 
activities or the White House Special Inves­
tigations Unit. These memoranda, corre­
spondence, papers and things Include, but 
are not llmlted to, all handwritten notes of 
John Ehrllchman produced by the White 
House on June 5 and June 6, 1974 pursuant 
to an order of J'udge Gerh:l.rd Gesell tn 
United States v. Eh.rlichman (D.C.D.C. Cr. 
74-118). 

0. Handwritten notes of John Ebrllcbman 
of a meeting on July 12, 1971 among the 
President, J'obn Ehrllchman and Robert 
Mardt:m. 
Memorandum Setting Forth Facts and :Bases 

Underlying Proposed Subpoena for Record­
ings of Presidential Conversations and 
Other Th1ngs Nece3Sary tor the Commit­
tee's Inquiry Into Domestic Survelllance 
Activities 
The folloWing sets forth the facts and 

ba.ses underlying the proposed subpoena 
dated June 24. 1974 for recordings ot Presi­
dential conversations and other things nec­
essary tor the House Judiciary Committee's 
Inquiry Into Domestic Survelllance actlvitlea 
and thelr aftermath. 

Part A of the proposed subpoena regards 
tape recordings and other materials respect­
ing the tollowl!lg s;>eclfied conversations: 

(1) 2\:feet!ng among the President, Charles 
ColSon and H. R. Haldetna.n on June 23, 1971, 
between 11:30 a.m. and 12:41 p.m. 

The President met wlth Colson and Halde-­
man !rom 11:39 a.m. to 12:41 p.m. Two days 
later Colson sent to Haldeman a memoran­
dum deta.U1ng the political gains to be de­
rived from the p>osecutton of Daniel Ells­
berg. Charles Colson subir..ltted an llof!ldavlt 
1n United State3 v. Ehrlicl!.man. (D.C. D.C. 
Cr. 74-116) dated Aprll 29, 1974 1n whlch 
Colson stnted that In meetings during thla 
period the President repeatedly emphasized· 
the gra\·lty or t!lc leaks and his concern 
about Ell~ber,;. 

(2) ~Ieet!ng between the President and 
Charles eo:son on June 28, 1971 between 
6:50 and 7:25p.m. 

This Is the tl.t<;t meeting between the Presi­
dent and .Col..son followtng.Col.son's June 25. 
1971 memornactum. Daniel Ellsbecg wa.s in• 

• . . 

dlc-te!t on this date n:~d surrendered to !edeu: 
authorities. 

(3) Meeting among the President, Ch~!es 
ColSon and H. R. H~:d~ma.n on Jul]l, 1&71 
between 10:28 and 11 :~9 a.m. (John Ehrlich­
man was prE'..sent be:;o-9en 10:55 and 11:-l:J 
a.m. and HelllY K!Ss!.Dger wa.s present be· 
tween 11:22 and 11:24 a.m.) 

Colson's amctavlt of AprU 29, 1974 1l!e:1 !n 
United State8 v. Eh.riiC'hman atates that 1n 
a meeting between th~ President, Halder::1n 
and Col30::l the President issued direct!vll.$ 
to atop security leakS &t all cost. Thl..s u 
also the day taat Co':.>on called Howard H'.l!l' 
t() discuss the Pentagon Papers and Da::l!el 
Ellsberg and ln a memorandum fonnlrdl::.g 
a transcript of that conversation to HJ.!de· 
man, Colson referrod to a previous discussion 
between Haldeman and Colaon. 

(4) Meetings betwe~n the President and 
John Ehrllchman on september 7, 1971 be­
tween 8:S3 and 10:35 1\.m.; on September 8. 
1971 between 3:26 and 11:10 p.m.; and on 
September 10, 1971 between 3:08 and 3:51 
p.m. 

Accordlng to the testimony of John 
Ehrllchman (John Ehrllchmau testimony, 
Grand Jury, People v. Ehrlicb.man, June II, 
1973, 604) and h1s logs, thesa are tb.e ~t 
meetings between the President and Ehrl!:!l­
man f'ollowlng the Fielding break-ln. On 
Septomber 8, Ehrllchm.an met with Eztl 
Krogh and David Young (who headed C!.e 
Plumbers unit) at 10:45 a.m. and later tn 
the day, between 3:26 and 5:10 p~ met 
with the President. On September 10, 
Ehrllchman went directly from a meeting 
with the President between 3:03 and 3:51 
p.m. to meet wlth Krogh and Young. (Meet­
tngs and conversations between the President 
and Ebrllchman, furnished by the White 
House and John Ehrll.;b..::nrull_ogs). 

(5) Meeting among the President, R. B. 
Haldeman and Charles Colson on Septem!ler 
7, 1971 between 10:37 a.m. and 12:00 p.m. 
and telephone conversation between the 
President and Charles Colson 0::1 Septetnl:la:-
10, 1971 between 3:53 and ol:17 p.m. 

Accordl.tlg to the log or meetl.ngls and CO!l­
versations between the President and Colso:l, 
and Charles Colson's log, these are the f..-st 
meetings between the President and Colson 
following the ~elding break-ln. The meet­
Ing on September · 7, 1971 Immediately tol• 
lowed a meeting between the President a::d 
Ehrllchman. On September 10. 1971 the Presl· 
dent talked to Colson Immediately folloW'..z:.g 
the President's meeting with Ehrllcbmsn. 
Ehrllchman met at 4:00p.m.· wlth Krogh ~d 
Young and Colson met with Young ata 8:00 
p.m. 

(6) Meeting between thB President and 
Henry Petersen on April 19, 1973 between 
10:12 and 11:07 a.m. 

The President, by latter of Aprll 29, 19';'4, 
forwarded to Judge Gerhard Gesell ln Un!ted 
State8 v. Ehrllcb.mcm a transcript of thls con­
versation between the President and Re!lrY 
Petersen during which thero wa.s a d1.5cus­
sion or the Pteldl!lg break•1n. In hlll letter 
the President stated tll.a.t 1t the Judge desired 
to hear the tape itself, arrangements coulc1 
be made with the President's CounseLUa:.e­
rials 1n ·the possession or the Committee 
Indicate that the President discussed lnter::ar 
security con.s!deratlons. 

(7) Meeting betwe'en the President a~d 
Richard Kleindienst oc Aprll 25, 1973. 

ltlchard Kleindienst has testlfled that he 
met with the President on Aprll 25, 1973 at 
the White House to advise the President to 
send lntorm:ttlon about the Fh'lding breal:­
l!l to Judbl' Byrne in the El~berg case. (Ric!:.· 
ard K.lt"lndier-...st testtmo::1y, D sse 3574--;"3, 
3607). The P!'esidcut has stated that K.le!..::.­
dlenst came to see him a;:1::l the President ic.­
structed that the Justlc~ Department memo­
randa relat!...'\i,: to the bresk-in be tl.led 'l'<'l~!l 
the C..-.urt tn Los Angel~. (Preddent Ntxo~·i 
statement, M:l; 22, 1973, Q Pres. Docs. 696). 

~ . ,_ .. , .. ~ .. 



August 2.:!, 1974 CONGRESSIONAL RECORD- HOUSE H90-U 
Part B o! the subpoena requests the follow­

Ing materials: 
All memoranda, correspondence, papers 

and things prepared by. sent to, received by 
or at any time contained tn the t!lH of 
Charles Colson, H. R. Ha~deman, John 
Ehrllchman, Egll Krogh and David Youn~r to 
the extent that such memoranda, corre­
spondence, papers and things relate or refer 
directly or Indirectly to the act!V! ties of the 
White Rouse Special Investigations Unit. 
These memoranda, C'.()rrespondence, papers 
and things Include, but are not limited to: 

(1) All handwritten notes o! John Ehrlich­
man produced by the White Row;e on June 5 
and June 6, 1974 purs\tant to an order of 
Judge Gerhard Gesell In United States v. 
EhrliCh man (D.CD.C. Cr. 74-116). 

. (2) Handwritten notes of John Ehrltchman 
o! a meeting on July 12, 1971 among the 
President, John Ehrlichman and P.obert 
Mardian. 

Part B o! the subpoena seeks materials In 
the .files of specified Whtte House statr mem­
bers relating to the activities of the White 
Rouse Special Investigations Unit; the White 
House stalf members listed in Item B were 
involved in activities relating t-o the Special 
Investigations Unit. 

Item B refers to the handwritten notes or 
John Ehrllchman With respect to certain 
speclfted meetings. They were produced by 
the White Rouse on June 5 and June 6, 1974, 
pursuant to the Order of the Court and 
arrangements with the White Rouse in 
United States ·v. Ehrlichman (D.C.D.C. Cr. 
74-116) in which Ehrllchman Is charg'!d with 
perjury and other Violations in connection 
with the Fielding break~ln. In an affidavit 
dated June 12, 1974, Fred Buzbardt, Counsel 
to the President, acknowledged that these 
l:llaterla\ll bore on the Issues In that trial. 

Item C refers to handwritten notes by John 
Ehrlichman of a meeting on July 12, 1971 
among the President, Ehrllchman and 
aobert Mardtan. Ehrlichman has requested 
these notes in connection with the fOrth­
coming trial in Unfted State! v. Ehrlichma.n, 
but the White House has refused to produce 
them. An index supplied by the White Rouse 
sets forth that the subject matter on these 
notes concerns "national security wiretaps." 
Robert Mardian has testlfted that on July 12, 
1971 the President instructed him to Jliclr: 
up the logs and records ot the 1S69-71 wire­
taps from William Sullivan of the FBI and 
deliver those documents to John Ehrllchman. 
(Mardlan, 6 SSC 2405-CS). Ehrl!chman has 
testtfted that the President asked him to 
take custody of the wiretap records I Ehrlich­
man, 6 sse 2534:). 
SUPPLEMENTAL, ADDITIONAL, SEPA.llA"%1:, DISSENT­

ING, !UNORITY, INDlVm11At., AND CONC"OIUliNG 
VIEWS 

Concurring views of Meur1. Railsback, Fish, 
Hogan, Butler, Cohen and Froehlich 

For reasons we articulated In debate before 
the Judiciary Committee, the undersigned 
voted to recommend Articles I and n to the 
Rouse. We agree in substance with this Be­
port as it relates to those two articles. How­
ever, lest anyone tn!er that we agree without 
reservation to every point made, and gtven 
the lack of adequate ttme to prepare a. de­
tailed response to such points, s-.1tnce It to 
say that we do not necessarUy agree that 
there is clear and convincing evidence to 
support e\'ery conclusion contained 1n the 
Report or that e\'ery fact referred to Is nec· 
essary or rele\·ant to support such articles. 

TOM RAILSBACK. 
H.\l\ULTON FISH, Jr. 
LAWP.E:!:CE J. HOGAN. 
M. CALDW"I:lL Btrr:.t:ll. 
WILLIAM S. COllEN. 
HAROLD V. F'ROEl!LICH. 

Acd!tional vfews oj .'\Iessrs. Brooks, Ka.ster.­
m~. Edwards, Cooger1, Eilberg, Seiber­
ling, Danielsm, Rangel, Ms. Jordan, ltfs. 
Holtzman, and Mr. }}fezvln!k1/ 
On two occasions, Richard M. Nixon has 

taken the oath set forth in the Constitution 
or the United States to which all Presidents 
must swear. In that oath Richard Nl:ton 
promised to "faithfully execute the Otnce of 
tlie President of the United States." He 
swore to "preserve, protect and defend the 
Constitution of the United States." He prom­
Ised to "take care that the la~·s be faith· 
fully executed." 

In each of these areas Richard Nixon has 
violated his solemn obligation to the Ameri­
can people. The e\'ldence is overwhelming 
that Richa.rd Nixon has used the Otnce of 
President to gain political advantage, to re­
taliate against those who diSagreed with 
him, and to acquire personal ~-ealth. To 
achieve these objectives he chO&e a course 
designed to obstruct the administration of 
justice, to misuse the functions of agencies 
of the Federal government, and to abuse the 
powers or his office In a manner that 
threatened the sanctity of our democratic 
form of government and the constitutional 
rights and safeguards of every American cltl- · 
zen. 

Richard Nixon obstructed the due admin­
istration of justice by covering up White 
Rouse involvement in criminal activities. He 
a.ttempted to prevent the Federal grand 
Juries, Federal prosecutors, the Department 
of Justice and the Congress of the United 
States from fully Investigating those criminal 
activities and taking appropriate action. He 
concurred 1n the perjury of witnesses, par­
ticipated in the payment ot money to pur­
chase sUence, refused t-o produce evidence, 
interfered with the Ofllce of the Special 
Prosecutor a.nd discharged the Special Prose­
cutor for pursuing the course of justice too 
forthrightly. 

Rtchard Nixon attempted to use the In­
ternal Revenue Service to harass his enemies 
and to favor his friends. Re-directed the Fed­
eral Bureau of Investigation and the Secret 
Service to engage in Wegal wiretapping. He 
endeavored to use the Central Intell1gence 
Agency to sidetrack the Federal Bureau o! 
Investlga.tion's investigation into the Wegal 
entry of the National Headquarters or th& 
Democratic National Committee. He a.uthor­
i.Zed a domestic intelligence operation that 
would have suspended the constitutional 
rights of all Americans. 

Richard Nixon has continually refused to 
cooperate with the Congress of the United 
Statea in the exercise of Its constltuUonal 
responsibilities. He has concealed tn!orma­
tlon legitimately subpoenaed by the Congress 
and Its committees. He has supplled mllilead­
tng information to the Congress and the 
American people; and he baa knowingly per­
mitted his aides and appointees to testt!y 
erroneously and dishonestly before various 
congressional committees. 

For these activities the House Judiciary 
Committee has recommended three articles 
of impea:hment against IUchard M. Nixon. 
These articles are tully supported -by the 
evidence presented to the Commltt~. They 
do not, however, lnc!ude all of the o.trenses 
committed by Richard Ni11:on for which he 
might be Impeached, tried and removed from 
otnce. 

There ls·ample e'>ldence that Richard Nixon 
has violated the Constttt:.tlon and the laws o! 
the United States in an el!ort to enrich 
himself at the cost of the American ta.'IP6Yer. 

Sho:tly after his election in 1968, :Mr. 
Nixon pur.:;ha.sed three prh·ate homes. He 
then prevaUed 'Qpon agencies of the Federal 
g?vernment to spend thousands of dollars 
of public funds at those properties. Intfon-

slve investigations bl' the House Go•ernment 
Operations Committee, the General .-\ccount-
1ng Otnce, the ,Toint Committ~ c.:c. Internal 
P..e\'enue Taxation, -and the U.S. Internal 
Re\'enue Service have concluded that man\' 
of these expenditures were· for Mr. Nixon's 
personal beneftt and served no proper gov­
e1·nment function. 

To preclude the possibllity that a ~sident 
might, because o! ~rsonal financial con­
siderations, either mL'\u~ the oftlce !or his 
own benefit or be held hostage to a hostile 
Congress, the drafters of our Constitution 
provided: 

'·The Presidellt shall. at stated times. re-­
cei-.e tor his service, a compensation, which 
shall neither be increased nor diminished 
during the per!~ for which he shall have 
been elected, and he shall not receive within 
that period any other emolument from the 
United States or any of them." 

The meaning o! this clause Is both clear 
and certain. Alexander Hamilton, WTltlng l!l 
the Federalist Papers No. 73. succJnetly stated 
its purpose as follows: 

"It 1s Impossible to imagine any pro\·lslon 
which would have been more ellg1ble than 
this. The legislature, on the appointment cf 
a President, Is c.nce for all to declare what 
shall be the compensation for his services 
during the time for which he shall ha\'e 
been elected. This done, they will have no 
po;o;er to alter it, either by l..ncre3.SP. or dim­
inution, tlll a new period of &ervlce by a 
new election commences .••. Neither the 
Union, nor any- of its members, wtll be at 
liberty to give, nor wtll he be a.t Uberty to 
receive, any other emoiument than that 
Which may have been determined by the 
first ~t:" 

During his term of otnce, Richard Nixon 
has received a stated compensation !or hl3 
senlces as Chief EXecutive Of!:cer of our 
go\"ernment, including a 5ala.ry of $200,000 
each rear and an annual expense account of 
$50.000. Ciearly, the payment of thousands 
of dollars by the Federal governmP:J.t for new 
heating systems, remodellng den windows, a 
sewer line, boundary surveys. landscape 
maintenanc~. sprinkler systems, and a shuffle 
board court constitutes additional "emolu­
me.llts." 

In its audit ot Mr. Nixon's income tax re­
turl:l.S for 196~ through 1972, the Internal 
Revenue Serrlce concluded that: 

"In view of the taxpayer's relatlonshlp to 
the United States Government as it& Chief 
Executive Officer, the above item& constitute 
addttlonai compensatfon to him for the per­
formance of his services for th~Gorern.ment." 

In addition t-o receiving unlawtul emolu­
ments while in office, Mr. NIXon he.s at· 
tempted to evade the payment of his lawful 
taxes. There Is substantial evidence that 
when Mr. Nixon signed his Federa! income 
tax returns for 1969, 1970, 1971 and 1972, he 
k.tlowingly attested to false Information In­
tending to de!raud the American people o! 
approximately one-hal! million dollars. On 
his_ tax returz:s for those years, he cla!mPd 
.u unlawful deduction fer a charitable e:m­
tributton of his pre-presidential papers when. 
in .ta.ct, no such gttt h&d been nud~. IIe or 
his a.gents manufactured ml:llead!ng and dis­
honest documents to support the deduction. 
As a result or attesting to false l!lformatton, 
Mr. Nlxon, tor two consecutive ye:us, reduced 
h!s tax 11ab1!1ty to less than $1,000 on Income 
or approximately one-quarter million dollars 
a year. 

The Interrul Revenue Service has a.lso e~­
tabl!shod that l!r. Ni.xon unlawfully reduced 
h!s taxes by tailing to repo..-t certain tncome 
!rom the sale o! propertl'!s In Ca!lfornta, New 
Yo:k an11 Florida. The Senate Select com.:. 
m!ttee ha.s do...--ur.tellted Mr. Nlxot:l's !a.tlure 
to report as income the receipt ct t-5.000 of 
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EXHIBI'!' C 

COJ\1J.\1ITTEE FOR PUBLIC JUSTICE 

.-: 

22 EAST 40L'l STREET 
NEW YORK:, NE'\·;' YORK 10016 

{212) 725-1222 

October 2. 1974 

... ' 

Ex~cutit·~ Council 
Chub E. Goude!l, 

Chaitml:l 
Lilli~n H:!!::lSn, 

Vice-Chirr.un 

1.. 

Arthur F. Sampson, Administrator 
General Services Administration 
18th & F Street, N.W. 
Washington, D.C. 20405 

Bl2i~ Cb~kr 
V~ec-Ch~tr:nan, Tr:;u. 

Thonus fi:J.r.dr,~n 
l\;o:m~n D·>:se:; 
S:e;-h~n Gillc:s 
Ellnuc G:,:t!on 
John He«:r 
john M •~siic!J 
/l.ryeh 1'-::<:r 
P.cb:rt B. Sih·ers 
l"hrtin Pt~:tz 

Dear Mr . Sampson: Sunley K. S!::I:~:,lu:n 
Telford T•;·l.,r 
R~}mo:~d $. Tro:.t;,h 
Htn~•h v:·eins:ei<: 
]:rome ""'-i.:<.:ner Pursuant to the provisions of 5 u.s.c. Section 

552 we respectfully request that you make avail­
able to us for inspection the follm.ring materials 
currently under your custody and control: 

Ex~t'ulit·~ Dirtuar 
Lcoa. fric:Jcu.n 

1 . 

2. 

·All tape recordings of conversations in the 
White House and Executive Office Building 
("Presidential ta?e recordings") covered by 
your purported agreement with Richard Nixon 
dated September 7, 1974 relating to the 
Watergate breakin, thE: il1Ve8·tig-q,tiun o£ possible 
criminal activities on Watergate and the coverup 
of these activities. Initially we would like 
access to the 98 tapes subpoenaed by the House 
Judiciary Committee in its impeachment inquiry 
and specified in the House Judiciary Committee 
report on Impeachment at 120 Congressional 
Record H.9031-9041 (August 22, 1974). 

All Presidential tape recordings relating to the 
misuse of govern~ent agencies {the FBI, the IRS 
and others). Initially we would like access to 
the 49 tapes subpoenaed by the House Judiciary 
Committee in its impeachment inquiry and specified 
in the House Judiciary Co~~ittee report on 
Impeachment at 120 Congressional Record H.9031-
9041 (August 22, 1974). 

t\~dr: .:xhdfcln 
:;.,,;·.ert II. S.!llei 
Artl1:JC ~"~~:~ ., . : :.::: r. Jr. 
!>tr:rl.en s,!;:ro'j \i..c-:g 
)uhn S: i;:e~thJ!ec 

- - c,,:J.:>n :-.~~rmJn - - --·--------- ·- -- - ---------- ------
Wiili.:.'Tl L. Shirer 
DH·iJ 5!.•1:.:;» 
l'ed ~'"' >n 
c,, , , ,~c ~i.1:.i 
,\tt~,· :d l !>mit!-. 
Jr.n Srein 
l'hii•P S<ern 
~,:r 1! lt~:':l Styron 
h :-:o: t Vo,.nl ·<r;; 
b v t(Jthv /t., \\.' .a.!\w,nh 
J.'hn \.."o il""' WHJ 
GrJ~C r: . \'l: ,ur. :-l.~t 
l.lm-:' \\·.u~ •. n 
h : dt,,,.1 ~-1 . \\'•!·~Lt( 

- JVi:~h \\'.: :t 1 ~iC'in 
H""' \\' . .,r .... t 
Lew. HJ \\'. ·J~I .. IlClc 
c. \' J ' l ". ':r.·.,,lo! '4',1tJ 
Ad~ Y JHI\ulin\~J 

It is vital for the proper functioning of our government that 
the extent of Presidential abuse of office be made known 
so that proper safeguards can be established for the future. 
The Freedom of Inform~tion Act is based on the _jsfU~ion 
that all information relating to government op~~tiori that 
the people need to perform their political fun ions ~po~ ld 

. . . - - .,. . ~ . 

... /1 "~ 
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be furnished to them. We therefore request inspection of the 
Presidential tapes described above, so that the people will be able 
to discover if and how the highest office in the land was misused 
over a five-year period. 

In addition the undersigned belong to a non-profit Committee of 
citizens concerned about issues of public justice and are conducting 
our own inquiry into Watergate events and the abuse of Presidential 
power. We feel that these materials contain information necessary 
to carry out our inquiries. As journalists, historians and lawyers 
the material is also necessary for our professional pursuits. 

In view of the fact that the statute contemplates judicial remedies 
if our request for inspection is denied, we would suggest that none 
of the material requested be removed from your control pending the 
initiation of judicial proceedings. l'le \'lOuld appreciate a response 
from you within the next 2·0 days. 

LH/BC:mk 

Lillian ·Hellman 
Blair Clark 
Thomas Brandon 
Adrian De Wind 
Norman Dorsen 
Leon Friedman 
Stephen Gillers 
John Hersey 
Robert Silvers 
Telford Taylor 
Hannah Weinstein 

; I· ) ',,._ -/ 

----------------------- ------. 
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EXHIBIT D 

.... 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

GENERAL SERVICES ADMINISTRATION 
WASHINGTON, DC 20405 

OCT 15 1974 

Ms. Lillian Hellman 
Mr. Blair Clark 
Vice-Chairmen, Executive Council 
Committee for Public Justice 
22 East 40th Street 
New York, NY 10016 

Dear Ms. Hellman and Mr. Clark: 

·- _ .. ,._; .· G 
r .. ·- \ ·, ..... 

0 t· \.; ~­
) ..... '-· 

..... "' . 

."\._ 
!.:h .. -

. ' . 
\ · .. _~ i i ~ 

This is in response to your letter of October 2, 1974, in which you request 
access under the Freedom of Information Act, 5 U.S. C. 552, to 

All tape recordings of conversations in the White 
House and Executive Office Building (11 Presiden­
tial tape recordings"} covered by your purported 
agreement with Richard Nixon dated September 7, 
1974 ••• [ i] nitially ••• the 98 tapes subpoenaed 
by the House Judiciary Committee in its impeach­
ment inquiry and specified in the House Judiciary 
Committee report on Impeachment at 120 Congres­
sional Record H. 9031-'9041 (August 22, 1974), 

as well as access to 

All Presidential tape recordings relating to the 
misuse of Government agencies {the FBI, the IRS 
and others) ••• [ i] nitially ••• the 49 tapes 
subpoenaed by the House Judiciary Committee •••• 

The position of the General Services Administration has been that the 
~ · .materialt;> you _hav.e req_uested are the pr lvate property of the former 

President, which position was affirmed by the Attorney General of the 
United States in an Opinion issued September 6, 1974 (copy enclosed) .. 
Subsequent to a letter agreement between the former President and 
Arthur F. Sd.ulp:::.<:Ju, Auui.i.n.h;tr a.tc.r .::;,£ Gc:uaral Scr·.-i;::~:::;, d3.t~d 

September 6, 1974, and September 7, 1974, respectively, a copy,~ 
which we enclose, these materials are scheduled for deposit w@·tbi~ the0 

('\ 

General Services Administration subject to restrictions upon a '"'ess,. :' 
• !...l .lo-

. \~ ~ 

"' "'-~ ,/ ~-.,.,....-~ .... 

Keep Freedom in Tour Future_ With U.S. Savings Bonds 
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These restrictions do not permit this agency to accommodate a request 
such as your own without the prior written approval of the former President. 
Meanwhile, the validity and implementation of this agreement are -the 
subject of negotiation, legislation, and litigation, delaying the actual 
deposit of these materials within GSA • 

In denying you access to these materials, it is the position of this agency 
that: (1) this agency presently does not have the requested materials in 
its possession; (2) deposited papers and other historical materials are 
not ','records" within the purview of the Freedom of Information Act 
(5 U.S. C. 552(a)(3 )), and, therefore, are not subject to its provisions; 
and (3) assuming, for the sake of argument, that the deposited papers and 
other historical materials are subject to the provisions of the Act, they 
are exempt from disclosure under the third exception to mandatory public 
disclosure, i.e., 11 ••• matters that are ••• specifically exempted from 
disclosure by statute •••• 11 (5 U.S. C. 552(b)(3}). The pertinent statute 
is the Presidential Libraries Act of 1955, which provides that the Adminis­
trator of General Services may accept for deposit on behalf of the United 
States papers and other historical materials which may be subject t•) 
restrictions upon access that have been accepted by the Administrator 
(44 u.s. c. 2107-2108). 

You have the right to file an administrative appeal of this decision. Such 
an appeal should be in writing and addressed to this office. 

Sincerely, 

RICHARD Q. VAWTER 
Director of Information 

Enclosures 

-- --· ---· ----- ------------- -----------~,------__,......._ __ 
·-~~ ~----·' 




